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ofi ScaltcAoe ¥oS WIsdled hdudl feifdicsdl
Al aiftfes ATENRURIST a0t ol

FHATH (AT 095 9T O T FH FoAeF AHIAH WA ToFw A @R e AT, w7 wweE dww
TRATAes SR FAR TN G BT AT FRIHT Q04T Mo ATARUAAT G STTHT gaT FAT U, 3053 HT T S8(R) AAR
EU SR HETTATAEd] SAABRIE AT AT FaAT THTT TRUH G |
@  HERIE T
fafg:  fa@ Rouc A 9w 2% T faEER (@ETER FEAN 93, R0 TH) |
W ol gRIHRE U8 WA &, [ @0 e drarer, fewieei, #reuTuet |
7 farem 99.00 a9 |
(FITHE-98 FETHIIH SEHF FRU FERUEGAA FATeT  (F=4FA) Zoom HIhd FEATN BA FF TR SEREA!
HeTTATaewdTs Meeting ID ¥ Password S9ded TRIGH A4 TRUH B 1)
R  ohH fHvges
(F) FERT J&T
V) TATIF A TAT GoATAE GTAITH AL, 3098/ 08 &I Jiddad FA®hd X qIHed I |
) AEIEFEF TaeT Aled AdF a9 3009/ 09c ATIE FATH! ATqard 41 Aiie a3, H ATh-A0 Edra
qIT TE JATE faaRe @igd T |
3)  CTETIIET AATTR (ORI aHITSTH 313,305 / 0\6R & AR ST@TaRaTdha! (Mah! 4T ATste! TeTHe ATHE T |
(FTH T@TTE® Pratik Khanal & Associates, Chartered Accountants T: fafcherr @i A1 &4 WUH SERT
SHAF RE) |
¥) FAAE QAT TR T AR FRIAIHT =hT GOl 3.30% &7 AT 3,23, 9%, HLRY (&R g5 FIe faarmid
A FEwR ER AT G Alg T qroa HA) SRR TG AT (2 FASTrd o) farawor 9 @i T |
v 79 faedr e derad atafas HuaEr dRaE auE 9% R @ § T GATasE TIHT aihl Aate
AT T T FoAF TEHT ¥ a9 FafgaT AT q T AT T R TAT GATAFeeH] DR ATAET T |
@ frlw s
Q) FETAF ARG TEATE T AR BTART <AhT IIH] 8 90%T g ATSH T T.§,5Y,¥0 430140 (R G FIe
TAR A AAd B U A A TG T W) SRR ST $% @y T S T o
) M IR faaRETe FEIAIE g T T4l AR IS 5 5R,09,3%,56/140 ATE gig TR T QY,5%,94,0001-
(FERYT TeelTed S fATEATE TeETY FAR W) FAR g TN PR Jagaah] G ahM JEa
T feEsa T |
Y AT T (A SR T 43,33 Fiqeraenrs ¥ Tidqerd T FEarame qohel SR @i ¥E.$6 qiaeaars
¥R YA HAH T HFAIG JaaTTe TR0 4 F @IS (6) T (F) A GEAER JAgT T HHid Jard I |
¥) FEAG! (AREAE (W o #1931 R B @ue (M), AR o @ 41 3, fEw 90 @1 da €, AW % & e g,
37 3 qA1 MAH 90 71 FeT 3 Hew YA AHIH |9 UAH @RS T q9T (A ¥R qRIGHE AedTIhee
T fa FAA T AR AT A=A T e@dhdl Jar T |
¥) T o AT faxdiT WA A9 A FEAIATE AR AT Ul T/ TRIGT FANTAHT SN ATaIAE GEHid a7 GERIT
TH AT I FAH AT GoAq O, (T, BT ATAR FFAR ThaTe Ta G0 FAEs T d=ed
Frafqars vl Aferar JaTd T |
%) SURIh YIS THIGH BRIAIE! G JA7 FARmEean 6T T ey (Erene & Geaacdl G
AUAT TEAAR FHEH R AT T a1 qratdars Areqans e I |

@ faferer |
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ATEIR 0T JHT AddeEll ATHI6A SMoIbR g

) foerd FRET 9EE (COVID-19) &1 FRUEE 99 o FATTT FAMGHATE Ao Ta A9 Gl ATV
qIEAT T8 FAT FaTAT TI [F9TT GRICIART FRU SAEAT FETTAEEeTS A FIHATE HHT FTAHT AR
foreTy S RIg MR=g | A ATAHATE SUNA SARIAESATE AHT BAHT IUNEId WU T AT faed SERT qHd
STHHNT TR |

) FFATET 9EAA (ZOOM) HIAHATE GHTHT FEHRM g, ATRAT Fvaed Ted q91 HASH I AR ReTaHaese
AT g AT FRAT Yo WU G ATRAT UREIOA Afed A @Rae S W SR gHrgE/
few™e @rar @ifau®l THITR TEH HT FHE T THA ST shreeagm2078@shreefinance.com.np a7
HiemTed 7.250594%¥4%q AT Viber a1 SMS ATHd AGM 2T TR T38q 998 | IJ94 I 9UH $04d, Viber
a7 SMS AThHT dFeTed A=4sd (ZOOM) HIhaare TATHT FEHRI gae @il Meeting ID ¥ Password S9ed
TRTETS, | FATHT ATHRAT fafaa d=qer fa =mes Sroree /i IJeifad e AThd fad qe saae famsusr 3 |

3) T 9 g W § UV RN WA HIAH GAT UG | 9 § HUITH AT GHTHT FEHNIT g7 HeTTATaEed
faguet ID/Password 1 HTLHATE TS T ATRAT Ge=T Afed SUTCATTaT AHHET TATers faqawa |

¥) HEOATRl ATEAl oMt ATEIRUEAT GANTE AT 6 095108133 T 9§ fadar et aw ol e
IR g1 AT fopdTa avg RS | AU ¥ U (ATHISHT g FArs 9wl NMTgeh! (Gl FREARATRT PR @ike
T FEHTER geatead SAichepl ATHAT U7 AHANT 95 ATUHT ARGAEs AT ATGRYT FATHT FeHRIar SHrsq,
HAIA I, ST X ¥ G AT I T GHF g AERT THA T GIAATERT AR TRE |

W) TREE! WEMEIEETdrs AR oNd  [RAEEr HIE WH SAMMEl A ANE AThE  fFaR qornds |
FEIAT T R0%3 FARFN AMUF arfide fqawor, g=aras Aiafdel gfqaed ¥ od@merae gfdaed SerRdaHeed
RIETor 9 a1 9T T AR AUAT FEAH] Bl FA@aae SUaed IRISH Al ddd IRl aHAee
www.shreefinance.com.np #T THA ARGTRT ATHHT TRTew, |

%) TURUIGSTHT 9T {67 ¥ HARTH THBTART TR TS STk T8 HFIHIbT AT TaTd g7 I+, | Tl (At
TRV EIFET 93 VT 3N FFAIH] Feald FTATATAT TG qE Thebl & TS |

9) FH ATh T TwaT T&T AHATE TRl [GUHT qU RAqaspepr qfeedl adql g7 ATTHT FIRT TaX T o4& TRl T 593,
e yfafady s T T U TR FARVEATHT A% Ged i qU fAerer fauer gy (gfatade) @ aww
g9 |

5) BARAH foaud Fwa fafag ofide Twe@aAT ERg WEATIEed gAhd 9 ATeq WUH [quaar AR
g diEar arq fad dfed FEOERT BT FAET WThd HEAIE] ATAATS (dqigd STAT SHHn o
T, |

R) YRGABTATE ISHN TH, [SHTET a1 ATAadh] AF-gH o[ ATHITH Thare AA a1 ALATATE ATATT I
Hfchel TaTh [ & |

q0) A= HTAYIAH STHFIIH AT AT FHFIATRT FealT FAT, (SectaoT? FTSATSIHT THIH AT g7 AT g, |
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HE,
....................... freatt ... WET/IU-HEl/TRANART /AT, a7 F. ... J& H/EH
..................... g fadira aearet SraRae efaaaer fafa R09s /o) /3%, T fafearar fam g7 amirar
e I (FATEEr ) AMIF AGRUGATHT WA SURAT T AR JAT AUIHT FEATNT BF TEH
TUehlel Ih GUTHT HT/ETHT THATE IHTAT ST feaeebt @iy .. e HeT/3I9—
HET/ ARATi el /AT, ST . ... T G AT FRArest SARaAr o IR gl
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IR JATI—9F a7 a=T = FTa@aehl AT &
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(Fe: A1 fAaEd 9T 9% g 9T BIETHT 9% HUQT IS A9 faxiia GRATHRT Feard drarad
feeiTereR, FTSHTSIAT TeT TRAF T+ | )

i AT W AT W[ [AfHeS
qag 97
STIRETTDBT ATH: Lo ferme A/ SRGTT A
QAT THTIT T TFART oo ST TRAT .o

FRRIATRT TEAGAL ..o
(fafq R0z G 3% T fagER g = gAH= T ®IEATY FFT fafgdgd! qarsdt aifies qramo
FATHT I g ST TRUH JoeT T)

AU

. SRRGAESA AT Jeeltgd G [qaRor Afqard F9H AHaeT |
3. AR FATAT FEARATR AT TI9T9T J&qq T ATard 3 |
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INEARITY D! AcAR

g fadir Teaer qaredl aifie WURFETHT A WA GEATNT g SUHT R SAREHT
HETAHTaEs, Tafqdies, THaehee qa7 ATarasgesaT alfds TN T4 | eTHT AT HFIAT SATdr auel ThHed
Taq AfategeT am QR TR TAEEr a9l At QIERaE R T HEAT TIH G | ASTE TR
AfaXe ATATHT ARTE AARTEHT AT eI T YT FRIAR Aled HATRT e T4 ATTHMAT Ifgedr oy
FfaE WeARETE favd dddqeT yamed Weked! ARHT U ATAE Aty T FHT qfpy A
FRIEAR qHT AGAT e HALATH] ATA9E ETHIA GRATATS GeTH {&70T T ATRTHAF TATSS Ao v

TR JATAATS (Heeaar {48 e SHERT a9 MRATHT THIETg THHRI WS =ewg, |

NIRG HETTATAE

T AP FEATE! ATMH ATIRITAATEATS (I ATeT @I FRT F(qaa feasl s a9 3098,/ 06g
B ATGATd, FATRT AR [EETd TR HEIETRT G @it i (e Agieware AT Wik
BT T "ol faeare fauer g | FIfae HeTHTHT FRO AT 95 &I Pl Helheb! AT qaTT
T AfUepieT FAATATE & AULTRT FAATTHIT g AHRTRl TATS FFAR TAY [adid aRg=reear
U e aqTH WH TIAAE WER TP fabed I | qardy favq aueesh Seored TREdma
FRTHF FTATS (2 T JIFRT Ed AUH Hoawed HFIH gHg fadia ag=rees a9 a¥ afq
FRTHE | TEH ATFRI T FATATE TRTSH qTSET FATS GAT ARTHT G |

ATTIE T 098/ 0095 FHT A=A HFIATH TUST AT HIUEE (TEATFT ATHTIT SATEHT) %.35 FUS R0 AG
TEHS, | T TTHT TAATHT HET qH 9 gfqercer afg qUHT & 9T FHAT ATIaHT 9.5 Giqereer FH ATTH, |
T a9 FFIATR] B AR Al TUB] TAAH] 3,35 FAqA 817 ATTH & A7 F @o FAT 4.3
IfTITaer TdehT B | WETAd FATRTHT T TThT AATHT ATHTT FUTR TS 95,0 FIS AUH T | T ANIE
FIFT GEHT Pl AEATHT HIAS—NQ T TAE FAH Wb Ith AATIH] FRIAAT [AIqar g saterd
FIHT ATFETHT TG TABER] AALAT TEHTT G FAlTHT (97T AT [GZUPT FERT FHFRI TG =g |

T TP qUhl JEATNGT ATAITH] FAAT =[ThT Golibl 9% o B 5. %,9%,9%,53%16Y HeH A9 AR
9.90% AT AT ATHIT 3.30% ford=ur I FUTer IS FepaTa TTH(T YT TUHT T ATST GEATAT GAT THE
AT T AT J&ATE TRl FRRT A T4 |

=Tl AT TN AT Y TAGFH BFATR (81T € e % PR qAT ol A9E Y e 0 HS 9 095
AT ARl qAATAT fAarT 099 gfqerdest fRAT famgel gl @ 9= Fol ade % 99.3% gfqerder

g ATHE |

ARG HETTHIEEY,

FEIATT YT T FehaTe ST TUHT (AT TT (AR TRT TaH LTS FeATSR g 397 faebra
T TSR FaGRAT GeATT g Scaraefidd & awmad faqet o sofl awerar fa979 ere fag smuer
T | fHaredm e aEifaer Hids Tfuer 9w w0 g T A A a9 ged R
IRATSTAT A=aT 9T F-FAT FEAMTF T IATRAHAR & AdAh beald el Bl JaTe T Afqars A
T ATTHT G |

fava 9IaeHT agATATAE &7 JaAmed ITH BRI HSTHRIH! FHEe AR A(hg &7 aiT el
T Ghd 99 TG TR Aedebl [qug @k i AfqRea § ® 1 9ded, &ed, AraEnd & Jwad
ATIRIT SAATATER &7 I g MUl ORI ol HT FATGT HUHG | T ATeeh ATIEGIHT SMGUhT

¥ sl aiffe gfades 06/ ols¢




@ oM SoATIIGT UUS BISo . fa.

%” Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

TR, q¥ear Hebe, e adr i geures drerer giqeasl et THeEs faid quee J&d 99 a9
af aeEr s 5 | gdr fafag yfaewadrer S amEr d9rerEr aig T9 g ¥ fEAdr sueRees
fAohT TR T PRTATYERT ATATAAT (AR T TT=rehl AT FRALHHT ared 9% ATHT 9ebT gy | faeirar
FGURT FAATII AAITHT qHT T (AT FEATHN AR TRGahee qedoeie 5 @l ¥ feafq
T T AHRT & ST ARMHT TUEEHT ETHT SARUAEeATs ATHUEF FIAHe (a7 Tl [qvare dfecer
SFERT 9 TRATHT THTATS TRISH =ATewg |

NIEA ETTTEES,

AT dfhg FRIERATS THT FAM ATCHATT ¢ @ UM S d Connect IPS, Real Time Gross
Settlement (RTGS) ST&T JATETEEATE TATE TRTE ATHTHT B T HIaTedt oAby Tl 97 IR ThTHTH
HIETHePT FATd Ts T4 [axiTg AT TMEheehl WATEA ATHT &ld eTTHT ShHl daT (RATS ded
Tlede! 1T AT TSN G | TIATE ATGF Digital Banking / Cashless FRIARATE FTcATER T Hrard
Srehepl A&THT TEAT g fqeara fowesr & |

NG HETTAEES,

IE faig FRATHT 095 AU AT FAHAT (IR FHT ) FA 50 FAAT HHARIBE HATA @ AIH!
T | T YUY TAT AiESAT W AT FHANES ARG I (i AT A1dg Tehesdrs <, I,
e ¥ giaeadl faxiar Jar IJueled RIS Ahel AUHT | (& STEAT T YTebeedrs Fiqeqdr aame
IS TRTHT ¥ Hofl forg [afqw PREAR T e HeTAHaeedTs qid Iaead] s H Hell JIeled
favaed g | TvIe ek T TN (AT GRATHT TEQUE WHl TG WA Ta ATHT THT JIaT TEF
AT 2 HTH FRATEN T g @ FERT A GEIT TATES ATawd JeArse Ay |

sreegeT, fait facir womefreer fmTorAT R @@ i fafe T8 awarEe Aifq HEeE Jmea oy
JEeTH I & AUTA A SF AT A (HATHE (Hbres I eifed AR A<k Tdg | AT, FEIHIE
FRARATS @eg, Faeqdi q97 IR TS+ HAHT AH Fed Ua gh1d (e goardsd dHiaet
TRTIFRISIEe 9T U SRGAT HETTHATE8e Jiq HFIAl q9T SMhId #31 dhare FHd aliad basdl
2 o | TeIeedhl Gedil Ud qaHTd Faal AUTEd Tehl T YT ¥Rl Afeddl AREeare AiasIar
FEIATA I IS BTae T, A= AT q47 faears o aran qequr eysfamaere s a9 Saaear | alds
AR Jehe T8 faa1 =Tewg, |

PREIEN!

fafa : R09510%13¢,
@RI v )

qege
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UGl Vol, 2063 DI GBI 90t TMSTHD)
Aodicd Afdifad ufddgel

FEAT T, R0%3 H THT Q0% (1) ATARS! ATIF (a0l EHAT ATIF TH 099,095 FH Af=ad
TGN g AU A dpare Hlgd FUH aTqaArd, ATRI-AEE feard a9 & Jaesd AT
TAR TRTHI TIT F=ATAF AATTRT FTqaad THT 10%(¥) ATARP! GATST I [daRIGeAls ATIR AT AT
gidaed daR TRTH G |

Q. i feraRor
T ATTIE THAT FFIATR T & FRIAREEH [0 T AHes @1d AR ThHl G |
%, qEAA

ATF aT 3008/ 06 HT FIHT FFAID & AAT Tl 5.5%,09,3% 5RILO TEH G | TF qUH
AT AT FFIATHR] FA (T T & 7 W, FS T HoAl IS 5.% Ad 4R FS 6l G | AdE qUH!
=T TR Afehy TEIRIT .90 TG (el Bl ATIIHT 0.0 FAeTd) AT Teehl TH SIST TAqT AT BT
(T ATATT ATEHT) &35 FRAS R0 AT bl T |

g, THRT A
A a0 099,095 AT HEIAIHRT FeT AT Aftecd] THHBT AT 2.35 F(TAA 81T ATS .
¥ FE c\9 A TIT & @9 FHA L5 TAAd gT9 A5 T US FAS ¥O A HUH G | T4
oA AT FFOl FRIER GfSE! FFIAIET @3 HATRT (@7 97 #2 Aadr 9fg) 5. 99 FRIS ¥y
A TEhl G |

T R qaQ©
T ATfIF TTHT FEATA TP [TepTe HUIFETHT €9 95 FE IT Al TRl FRUA &l
FFIATH] TFLOT ATATgaTe T1e Y418 5. Y9 FRIS ¥\ q1@ HUMCHE FUH G | Afeed! FAaTAr 78
JATE &.5 RIS 3% A HUMCHS ekl 193 |
(ATTF T 309,095 HT faxiTd FREARS! AGTITAT FUHT [FaR0 JaT AGoee T FiqaaTa
THET EH B )

R wuIad qiufaer gfaas
F. FHEAD (A AT qHB FRAR i [ ATAR Rl S

(3. ATEH)
fara=wr AL.F 099/095 | IAT.F 0% /009 | HAT.g 064 /0%

IR IS 5%,09 53,2034 59,00
frerg %, 9% Y,3%,00 ¥ 53,59
FHAT TIT ¥ 45,95 ¥ %\93% ¥ R5,5%
FHA ATRTAT Y 5\ v ¥q 9O Y
FA G Yz, ¥0 9,54 13,94
TR FRIER gl G HATHT 19,¥4 19,42 13,24
arrer faawr (geaiaa) * 2,98 %* 5 &3 Q0,43
7 afes @ j0 90 40
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ATE aT 3099,095 HT HFIAIH! (HETHT g WUHT B A Ho( ATIEAT 219 ATUH G | TF a9 g3
HATRT 239 Jaerad aeal g | IR dfepg Fwafa T av a@r 7 e &£ FA1 A9EH 0,0 Fiqerd
TEH G |

g iy aur graaied RisfiEe S FREREE £ a6 W U A 3@1
ATATTHE! AATAH] BRI ATAR A 3= d1g, (9™ @ AUTRd TIAT qhg qa, faxira &aw
TRAATRT AT AT FqAT s a1 = Tewes, dfeby a=wr e yiqeqytar feafq fammm
B, AAFIAT ATAEY AT @A A ORI FSAehl HETHT ATEER 18 g T GHEAES
forr ades St a9 99 9f faxirr SR FRERAT 99R T TUE FRebel TTAT TEH! SRGUHT J |
HAAMET &GB! qTadls gal [a7d e auahd YSMadd Tardel Al Heed! (MRwavadl Jig
Fervarer! fawr Ut @ | F9 @I ARG d@ SR SRl THY STTEd ANTaers qed T4
qTe WRERAT AT AT 94 ARG, | AGATEH SATH] JAATHT TATEl HFT JaHedT ga o, e
ATEF ASTTF TN AT T HFATAIE AT TIAST SFR] AARAT TATRT GFel (aTAR TgaT ASTeh
HATHT AT TIeaT @ & A Aratd qud FHAT: TG AT SR aTed GAPT T/l T
FANT AT SRGH FTAH TEHT HALATS, | AGATT GHYAT ATHT STTHT FIAC TIAATT FALAT THTAT
g THG X G [aiig F¥IT Ahd YAT8 g ATl ANTaHT Hd qig s Tiaeqdl J&asd TITAl
T HES Bl AT F |
faed srddq=aehT agATATHE &7 JATST T PRIAT HETHNT Sifeby &T7ehT AT qfe FTHEAT FAqT AT
TAUT ST AUH § 99 TRIA-THIAT TFHT 39 GRad (Mutation) STERE fa9TadreT #or faeram
TETHTRT TATER] Avcdepl (07 ok 9fd AMR=T 7 @l B | TGP AT T2, &2, AT
8 AT ATIRIT AR SFAT I TR THYHAT URAT Fofl FET AT TP |
ity Sfeafaa foad aftea qur a=awftca FO@T Hoid U FFHH FRIARATE e 767
qIRT U AT THAAT ATTAH FThTe T IIATeRT ATT AR AR A5k GpRIcHE 4T ITITh
AIATIRT GSIAT gy, A AUETT T Hiohreg, |

T gfaaeT TR Wuer fafqeer = qder Suesll T wfAsr T 9 el SR
SECIEEINITINC Rl
=T ATIEF TR AT Y, TAGHH FFIATH (8T & o ¥ FIE qAT ol ATUE Y e 10 FIE Wg
R09c HATHTE HATAH! TAATHT (METTHT Hd FIX Aa€T el B A Holl dr9e Hied 99 Fraqerae
qEH G |
Foieel AT fFEaT Al THEERT aATss SCATEAeid &7 onad (aqed av aHar a9
o fag e @ Faars HE FH e FH, G JAT AT IURT, ATYR HFATE, TITH
SR, ATATE AT T AT /AT TS ANTURT B | FFIAIA e el AT qwaT i
G-HIAT FAGTIE AT ICATETAHAS SAAD Hbrald Tal b1l JaT8 T A ATATTH] G | THATTETAT
FEIAT FaTT T foeiiar Jarems vk qedHdl aarse ool ¥ qEa Ud e Jar & T
q% Feaid e fada FRAEAR FATAT T HFAH Ad Ae ATTH G, |
FFIA ETATF TEHT JAATe TAT ANHT FAHes T e Y ATHT annffes a0 3095 /068
1 AT (5 ATARET FSAT T FTAFRT F=TAT T AT AMGTH B, |

Q) YmET ST AR

FTeRT fafaeT FaTer TATHeAT oTraT fawdR T4 S i WP HITAS-9% T BRI AT AT
T ATdF TTHT T (TAR T T g Tobe | (@ HeTHIres daear qraT g4 Tl
GUSHT AITHHT e M@ TTIAT T AT [q&dR T A1 el G |
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() T FAMAF qLT A

AN FqMEA q91 FAqaaA1 (Corporate Covernence and Compliance) @Ts d¥e 3=
QATHFATAT TET TTATE BATEIT TH FEHAT (MTAAHRI [haes FEAl ITERS HATAY,
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PAN: 606212834

Pratik Khanal & Associates

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHREE INVESTMENT AND FINANCE COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Shree Investment and Finance Company Limited (referred to
as the “Company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021),
and the statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement of cash flows,

statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including
summary of significant accounting policies.

i

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 Ashad 2078 (15 July 2021), its financial performance and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with ICAN's
Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

- Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

a) Information Technology (‘IT’) systems and controls impacting financial reporting in
relation to the Company

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The IT environment of the Company is In assessing the integrity of the IT systems relevant

complex and involves a large number of for financial reporting, our team obtained an

independent and interdependent IT systems understanding of the IT infrastructure and IT

used in the operations of the Company for systems relevant to the Company's financial

processing and recording a large volume of reporting process for evaluation and testing of

transactions at numerous locations. relevant IT general controls and IT application
controls.

Lalitpur, Nepal, Contact No. : 9851205670, 9851079367, Email : pkhanal@pka.com.np
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The accuracy and reliability of the financial
reporting process depends on the IT systems
and the related control environment, including:

= |T general controls over user access
management and change management
across applications, networks, database,
and operating systems;

= |T application controls.

Due to the pervasive nature, complexity and
importance of the impact of the IT systems
and related control environment on the
Company's financial reporting process, we
have identified testing of such IT systems and
related control environment as a Key Audit
Matter for the current year audit.

We gathered a comprehensive understanding of IT
applications landscape implemented at the
Company. It was followed by process
understanding, mapping of applications to the same
and understanding financial risks posed by people-
process and technology.

We also assessed the operating effectiveness of
controls over granting, removal and periodical
review of access rights. We further tested
segregation of duties, including preventive controls
to ensure that access to change applications, the
operating system or databases in the production
environment were granted only to authorized
personnel.

Other areas that were assessed under the IT control
environment was whether requests for access to
systems were appropriately logged, reviewed and
authorized. Entity level controls pertaining to policy
and procedure and Business continuity plan
assessment due impact of COVID-19 was also part
of our audit procedure.

Where deficiencies were identified, we tested
compensating controls or performed alternate
procedures.

b) Identification and provisioning for non-performing assets (‘NPAs’) in relation to the

Company

Total Loans and Advances (Net of Provision) as at 31 Ashad 2078: NPR 4,550.12 million;
Provision for NPA as at 31 Ashad 2078: NPR 26.54 million

(Refer Schedule 4.6, 4.7 and Note 3.4.5 of Schedule 3 and Notes 5.2.2 (c) of Schedule 5 to

the financial statements)
Key Audit Matter

The Nepal Rastra Bank ("NRB")
guidelines on recognition of Interest Income
and Unified Circular prescribes the prudential
norms for Income Recognition, Identification
and Classification of Non-Performing
Advances and Provisioning for Loans and
Advances.

The Company is also required to apply its
judgement to determine the identification and
provision required against NPAs by applying
quanititative as well as qualitative factors.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Our key procedures included, but were not limited
to, the following:

We understood the process & controls, tested the
design and operating effectiveness of key
controls, including IT based controls, focusing on
the following:

a) Approval of new lending facilities against the
Company's credit policies and the performance
of annual loan assessments.

b) Controls over the monitoring of credit quality

which amongst other things included, the

monitoring of overdue reports, drawing power

1%
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The risk of identification of NPAs is affected

limit, pending security creation.

by factors like stress and liquidity concems in  ¢) |dentification and classification of NPAs in line
certain sectors. with NRB's circular, the impairment requirement
The provisioning for identified NPAs is as per para 59 of NAS 39 and certain qualitative
estimated based on ageing and classification aspects; and

of NPAs, recovery estimates, value of security d) Assessment of adequacy of NPA provisions

. and other qualitative factors and is subject to
the minimum provisioning norms specified by
NRB and impairment of risk assets as per
para 59 of NAS 39.

The identification of NPAs and provisioning
for advances require significant level of
estimation and given its significance to the
overall audit including possible observation by
NRB which could result into disclosure in the
financial statements.

Considering the significance of the above
matter to the financial statements, the
heightened regulatory inspections and
significant auditor attention required, we have
identified this as a Key Audit Matter for the
current year audit.

being the higher of NRB norms and NAS 39.

To test the identification of loans with default
events and other triggers, we selected a sample
of performing loans and independently assessed
as to whether there was a need to classify such
loans as NPAs.

Performed inquiries with the credit and risk
departments to ascertain if there were indicators
of stress or an occurrence of an event of default
in a particular loan account or any product
category which needed to be considered as NPA.

Held specific discussions with the management
of the Company on sectors where there is
perceived credit risk and the steps taken to
mitigate the risks to identified sectors.

Selected samples for standard accounts, default
but standard accounts and overdue accounts
and assessed compliance with NRB circular on
COVID-19 Relief Package.

As per our review of the impairment calculation,
we noted that the impairment is calculated higher
of the following prescribed method:

i NRB Regulation;

ii. NFRS Pronouncement with specific
reference to para 59 of NAS 39.

¢) Provisions for litigation and taxation and contingent liabilities in relation to the Company
(Schedule 4.28 read with Note 5.6 of Schedule 5 to the financial statements)

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

The Company has ongoing legal and tax
cases which is pending in different courts of
Nepal. Significant management judgement is
needed in determining whether an obligation
exists and whether a provision should be
recognized as at the reporting date, in
accordance with the accounting criteria set
under Nepal Accounting Standard 37 - *

Our key procedures included, but were not limited
to, the following:

* Obtained an understanding of the Company's
process for determining tax liabilities, tax
provisions and contingent liabilities pertaining to
taxation matters;

Obtained list of cases / matters in respect of
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Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
- Contingent Assets (‘NAS 37'), or whether it
needs to be disclosed as a contingent liability.

Further, significant judgements are also
involved in measuring such obligations, the
most significant of which are:

= Assessment of liability: Judgement is
involved in the determination of whether an
outflow in respect of identified material
matters are probable and can be estimated
reliably

= Adequacy of provisions: The
appropriateness of assumptions and
judgements used in the estimation of
significant provisions; and

* Adequacy of disclosures of provision for

which litigations were outstanding as at reporting
date.

Evaluated the merit of the subject matter under
consideration with reference to the grounds
presented therein and available independent
legal / tax advice;

Review and analysis of evaluation of the
contentions of the Company through discussions,
collection of details of the subject matter under
consideration, the likely outcome and
consequent potential outflows on those issues;

Further, we assessed whether the disclosures
related to significant litigation and taxation
matters were appropriate and adequate in terms
of whether the potential liabilities and the
significant uncertainties were fairly presented.

liabilities and charges, and contingent
liabilities.
We determined the above area as a Key Audit
Matter in view of associated uncertainty
relating to the outcome of these matters which
requires  application of judgment in
interpretation of law.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Report of the Board of Directors (BOD), including annexures to the BOD's
Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with NFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

9z
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Auditor's Responsibility for Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so_wauld
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. «\‘&"‘H“WQ
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Report on the Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’

We have obtained information and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purpose of our audit. In our opinion, statement of financial position as at 15 July
2021 (31 Ashad 2078), statement of profit or loss, statement of other comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows, have been prepared in accordance with the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2063 and are in agreement with the books of account maintained by the Company;
and proper books of account as required by law maintained by the Company including relevant records
relating to preparation of the aforesaid financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and records of the Company.

In our opinion, so far as appeared from our examination of the books, the Company has maintained
adequate capital funds and adequate provisions for possible impairment of assets in accordance with the
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

To the best of our information and according to explanations given to us and so far appeared from our
examination of the books of account of the company we have not come across cases where Board of
Directors or any employees of the Company have acted contrary to the provisions of law relating to the
accounts, or committed any misappropriation or caused loss or damage to the Bank and violated any
directives of Nepal Rastra Bank or acted in a manner to jeopardize the interest and security of the
Company, its depositors and investors.

Pratik Khanal & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Thapaguan, New Baneshwor, Kathmandu
Date: 30 November 2021

UDIN No: 211202CA01094mLWPE
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Shree Investment & Finance Co. Ltd.
Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information: FY 2077-78

1. Reporting Entity
Shree Investment & Finance Co Ltd. (SIFCO) or the “Company” was incorporated in the year 1994 (2051 BS), as a Financial Services
Company and a Merchant Bank under the Nepal Finance Company Act, 1985 and the Nepal Company Act, 1964. The Company
has been licensed by the Nepal Rastra Bank as “C” class Financial Institution to undertake financial services and merchant banking
activities in the country.

2. Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements areprepared on an accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting
Standards (NFRS) read along with the approved carve-outs and in the format as per Directive No. 4 of NRB Directives,
2077 Historical cost convention is used for financial statement recognition and measurement except otherwise
required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than historical costs, such as fair value has been applied, these have
been disclosed in accordance with the applicable reporting framework.

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes to the
Accounts.

2.2 Reporting period and approval of financial statements

The Company follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar. The corresponding dates for the
English calendar are as follows:

Relevant Financial Statement Ne::)aaltees /e:earlizr:’dar Eng:t.:hlcpaelrei:jar
Comparative SFP* Date 31 Ashadh 2077 15 July 2020
Comparative reporting period 1 Shrawan 2076 - 31 Ashadh 2077 17 July 2019 - 15 July 2020
First NFRS SFP Date 31 Ashadh 2074 15 July 2017
Current NFRS reporting period 1 Shrawan 2077 - 31 Ashadh 2078 16 July 2020 - 15 July 2021
Current SFP Date 31 Ashad 2078 15 July 2021

*SFP = statement of financial position

The approval of financial statements of the Companyalong with the accompanied notes to the financial statements
were adopted by the Board of Directors in itsmeeting held on November30, 2021and the Board acknowledges its
responsibility of preparation of the financial statements. The approved financial statements have been recommended
for approval of the shareholders in the 27thannual general meeting of the Company.

2.3  Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR) which is also the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in NPR has been rounded off to the nearest rupee except where indicated otherwise.

2.4  Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This
may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate. It is also required to make estimates
and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss
as reported in the financial statements. The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial
statements and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised, and are applied prospectively.

The accounting policies as explained in Note 3 herein are consistently applied to except otherwise stated. They are
further included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements, and the effect and nature of the
changes, if any, are disclosed. The accounting estimates are appropriately disclosed in the relevant sections of the Notes
to Accounts wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

The accounting policies are to be applied consistently.Changes in accounting policies, if any, are to be disclosed with
the financial impact to the extent possible. When polices are not guided by the reporting framework, NFRS, other
reporting standards and generally accepted accounting principles are to be followed.
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2.4.1 Going Concern
The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis as the Company has adequate resources to
continue its business for the foreseeable future. In making this assessment, a wide range of information was
considered, whichare relevant to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability,
cash flows and capital resources.

2.5 Changesin Accounting Policies

The Company is required to adopt and apply the accounting policies in conformity with NFRS. The accounting policies
are applied consistently; changes, if any, are disclosed with the financial impact to the extent possible.

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies that most appropriately suits its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements. This
may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate. The accounting policies have been
included in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements and the effect and nature of the changes, if any,
have been disclosed.

During the current year, there is no change in accounting policies.

2.6 Reporting Pronouncements

The Company has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on
September 13, 2013. The NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

However, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) vide its notice dated October 30, 2020 has resolved
that Carve-outs in NFRS with Alternative Treatment and effective period shall be provided to the Banks and Financial
Institutions regulated by NRB on the specific recommendation of Accounting Standard Board (ASB). Details of carve
out provided are as follows:

2.6.1 NFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements
In para 19 of NFRS 10, a parent shall prepare consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances unless it is impracticable to do so.

However, this particular reporting standard is not applicable to the company.

2.6.2 NAS 34:Interim Financial Reporting
In para 2, if an entity’s interim financial report is described as complying with NFRSs, it must comply with all of
the requirements of this Standard. Paragraph 19 requires certain disclosures in that regard. However, an entity
shall not require to restate its corresponding previous interim period balance if it is impracticable to restate.
However, this particular carve out is not applicable to the company for FY 2020-21.

2.6.3 NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

a) Impairment
In para 58, an entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that
afinancial asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists,
the entity shall apply paragraph 63 to determine the amount of any impairment loss unless the entity is a bank
or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073. Such entities shall measure
impairment loss on loan and advances as the higher of amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal
Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per paragraph 63; and shall apply paragraph 63
to measure the impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances.  The entity shall disclose
the impairment loss as per this carve-out and the amount of impairment loss determined as per paragraph 63.

The carve out is not optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18 to 2020-21.Company will measure
the impairment of loan and advances to customers as higher of the impairment as assessed under NFRS or as
per the norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank. The provision is mandatory where impairment under NFRS
and impairment under NRB norms has been disclosed for comparison and the higher of the two is charged as
impairment and recognized in the financial statements.

b) Impracticability to determine transaction cost of all previous years which is the part of effective interest
rate
In para 9, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall
estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call
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and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid
or received, unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate (see NAS 18 Revenue), transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial
instruments can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to estimate reliably
the cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall
use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial
instruments).

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22.
Accordingly, the Bank has opted the carve out.

(4] Impracticability to determine interest income on amortized cost
In para AG 93, once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an
impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Interest income shall be calculated by applying
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset unless the financial asset is written off
either partially or fully.

The carve out is optional and has been provided for the FY 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22.
Accordingly, the Bank has opted the carve out.

2.7 New Standards in issue but not yet effective

For the reporting of financial instruments, NAS 32 Financial Instruments, Presentation, NAS 39 Financial Instruments
Recognition and Measurements and NFRS 7 Financial Instruments — Disclosures have been applied. NRFS 9 has been
applied only for the classification of Financial Instruments.

Anew Nepal Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS 2018) has been pronounced by the ICAN on 11thAshad2077. The
NFRS 2018 contains somenew standardswithamendments to the existing standards.

NFRS 2018 introduces the new standard as mentioned hereunder which will be applicable from the date mentioned

below:
Standards Applicable date
NFRS 9 16 July 2021
NFRS 14 16 July 2021
NFRS 15 16 July 2021
NFRS 16 16 July 2021
NFRS 17 16 July 2021

2.8 Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is material.

2.9 Limitation of NFRS implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available and the cost to develop the same would exceed the benefit
derived, such exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Basis of Measurement
The financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following items which were
measured or recognized as stated:

1)  Financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value at its initial recognition. Subsequent recognition
of FVTOCI and FVTPL financial instruments are measured at fair value.

2) Liabilities for defined benefit obligations are recognized at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation after deducting the net of the plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains, less unrecognized
past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

a. Business Combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition datei.e. when
control is transferred to the Company. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an
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entity to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential
voting rights that currently are exercisable.

The Company measures goodwill at the acquisition date as;

the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus
the recognized amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquire, plus

if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the preexisting equity interest in the acquire,
less

the net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships.
Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Company
incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisition date. If the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, then it is not re-measured, and settlement is accounted for within equity.
Otherwise, subsequent changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration are recognized in profit or loss
except for measurement period adjustment.

There is no business combination during the fiscal year 2077-78.

b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCl)

For each business combination, the Company elects to measure any non-controlling interests in the acquiree either
at fair value; or at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, which are generally at fair value.

Changes in the Company’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners. Adjustments to non-controlling interests are based on a proportionate amount
of the net assets of the subsidiary. No adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Company does not have any NCl as on reporting date.

c. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are the entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity if it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. The Financial Statements of subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements from
the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.

The Company reassesses whether it has control if there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. In
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the financial statements are combined line by line by adding the
like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary. The
carrying amount of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity of subsidiary are eliminated
in full. All intra group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
entities of the group (such as interest income and technical fee) are eliminated in full while preparing the consolidated
financial statements.

d. Loss of Control

Upon the loss of control, the Company derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, carrying amount of non-
controlling interests and the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity related to the subsidiary. Further
parent’s share of components previously recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (OCl) is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained earnings as appropriate. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognized in the profit or
loss. If the Group retains any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date
that control is lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for financial instruments depending on the level of influence retained

e. Transaction Elimination on Consolidation
All intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses (except for foreign currency
transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealized losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment
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3.3 Cash and Cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalents include notes and coins on hand and highly liquid financial assets with original maturities
of three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value
andare used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments.Cash and cash equivalents are carried
at amortized cost in the statement of financial position.

3.4 Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

3.4.1 Recognition
The Companyrecognises financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the terms of the contract,
which is the trade date or the settlement date.

Financial assets and liabilities

The Company applies NAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The recognition, and de-
recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, the impairment of financial assets, and hedge accounting.
The Financial Instrument has been classified in line with the provision of NFRS 9 as mentioned in the point no.
3.5.2.

Financial asset is any asset that is:

a. Cash;
b. an equity instrument of another entity;
c. acontractual right:
- toreceive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially favorable to the entity; or

d. acontract that will or may be settled in the entity's own equity instruments and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's
own equity instruments; or

- a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

A financial liability is any liability that is:
a.contractual obligation:
- todeliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

b. a contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments and is:

- anon-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s
own equity instruments; or

- a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

3.4.2 Classification
Financial assets are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

NFRS 9 classification - Financial Assets Subsequent measurement
1 |Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At Fair Value - through Profit or Loss
2 | Held at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
3 | Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

Financial Liabilities are classified under below categories as required by NFRS 9, namely,

NFRS 9 classification - Financial Liabilities Subsequent measurement
1 Held at fair value through Profit or Loss At fair value through Profit or Loss
2 Held at amortised cost using effective interest rate At Amortised cost using effective interest rate

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial instruments (financial assets and liabilities) at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.
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3.4.3 De-recognition
The Company derecognizes a financial asset, or a portion of a financial asset, from its financial statements where
the contractual rights to cash flows from the asset have expired, or have been transferred, usually by sale, and
with them either substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset or significant risks and rewards, along with
the unconditional ability to sell or pledge the asset.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability has been settled, has expired or has been extinguished.

3.4.4 Determination of Fair Value
The Company applies NAS 39. All financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date of initial
recognition and, depending on the classification of the asset or liability, may continue to be held at fair value
either through profit or loss or other comprehensive income. The fair value of a financial instrument is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

Wherever possible, fair value is determined by reference to a quoted market price for that instrument. For many
of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, quoted prices are not available, and valuation models are used
to estimate fair value. The models calculate the expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract,
and then discount these values back to a present value based on interest rate yields and volatility of currency
rates.

The financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate.

On initial recognition, it is presumed that the transaction price is the fair value unless there is observable
information available in an active market to the contrary. The best evidence of an instrument’s fair value on
initial recognition is typically the transaction price.

Various factors influence the availability of observable inputs and these may vary from product to product and
change over time. Factors include the depth of activity in the relevant market, the type of product, whether
the product is new and not widely traded in the marketplace, the maturity of market modelling and the
nature of the transaction (bespoke or generic). To the extent that valuation is based on models or inputs that
are not observable in the market, the determination of fair value can be more subjective, dependent on the
significance of the unobservable input to the overall valuation. Unobservable inputs are determined based on
the best information available, for example by reference to similar assets, similar maturities or other analytical
techniques.

The sensitivity of valuations used in the financial statements to possible changes in significant unobservable
inputs is not applicable to the Company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The valuation of financial instruments often involves a significant degree of judgement and complexity, in
particular where valuation models make use of unobservable inputs (‘Level 3’ assets and liabilities). This note
provides information on these instruments, including the related unrealized gains and losses recognised in the
period, a description of significant valuation techniques and unobservable inputs, and a sensitivity analysis.

Fair Value Hierarchy

NFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement requires an entity to classify its assets and liabilities according to a hierarchy
that reflects the observability of significant market inputs. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are defined
below.

Level 1- Valuation Technique using quoted market prices

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 1 if their value is observable in an active market. Such instruments
are valued by reference to unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the
quoted price is readily available, and the price represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions.
An active market is one in which transactions occur with sufficient volume and frequency to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2- Valuation technique using observable inputs

Assets and liabilities classified as Level 2 have been valued using models whose inputs are observable in
an active market. Valuations based on observable inputs uses market standard pricing techniques, and are
commonly traded in markets where all the significant inputs are observable.
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3.4.5

a)

Level 3- Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs

Assets and liabilities are classified as Level 3 if their valuation incorporates significant inputs that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). A valuation input is considered observable if it
can be directly observed from transactions in an active market, or if there is compelling external evidence
demonstrating an executable exit price. Unobservable input levels are generally determined via reference to
observable inputs, historical observations or using other analytical techniques. These are financial instruments
valued using valuation techniques where one or more significant inputs are unobservable.

Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have been
impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined.A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment
as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss event), and that loss
event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

- Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

- When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

- Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the counterpart.

- Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished financial
obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled payments.

- Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with specific individual
financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and amortized cost investment
securities at both a specific asset and collective level. All individually significant loans and advancesand
amortized cost investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.

Loans and advances and amortized cost investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and amortized cost investment
securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for trade receivables and
other financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

In assessing collective impairment, the Company uses statistical modelling of historical trends of the probability
of default, the timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgment as to
whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or less
than suggested by historical trends. Default rates, loss rates and the expected timing of future recoveries are
regularly benchmarked against actual outcomes to ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets measured at amortised cost
As per NAS 39

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as amounts due from Banks, loans and advances to customers
as well as held-to-maturity investmentsare impaired, and impairment losses are recognized, only if there is
objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset.
The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the deemed
recoverable value of loan.

Loans and advances to customers with significant value (Top 20 borrowers and borrowers classified as Non-
Performingas per Nepal Rastra Bank Directive) are assessed for individual impairment test. The recoverable
value of loan is estimated on the basis of realizable value of collateral and the conduct of the borrower/past
experience of the Company. Assets that are individually assessed and for which no impairment exists are
grouped with financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.
The credit risk statistics for each group of the loan and advances are determined by management prudently
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3.5

3.6

3.7

being based on the past experience. For the purpose of collective assessment of impairment Company has
categorized assets in to five broad products as follows:

1.Term Loan
2.Auto Loan
3.Home Loan
4.Personal Loan
5.Short Term Loan

If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the other reserves and funds (impairment reserve) in statement of other comprehensive
income and statement of changes in equity. If a future write—off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the 'Statement of Profit or Loss.

As per Loan Loss Provision of Nepal Rastra Bank

Loan loss provisions in respect of non-performing loans and advances are based on management’s assessment
of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisioning level prescribed in
relevant NRB guidelines. Provision is made for possible losses on loans and advances including bills purchased
at 1.3% to 100% on the basis of classification of loans and advances, overdraft and bills purchased in accordance
with NRB directives.

Policies Adopted

As per the NFRS Carve out, the Company measures impairment loss on loan & advances as the higher of amount
derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provision and amount determined as per
paragraph 63 of NAS 39.

Trading Assets and Liabilities

Trading assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities that the Company acquires or incurs principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term, or holds as part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-
term profit or position taking. They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value in
the statement of financial position, with transaction costs recognized in profit or loss. All changes in fair value are
recognized as part of net trading income in profit or loss as regarded as fair value through statement of profit & loss.

Derivatives Assets and Derivative Liabilities

Derivatives held for risk management purposes include all derivative assets and liabilities that are not classified as
trading assets or liabilities. Derivatives held for risk management purposes are measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position. Hedge accounting is not adopted for certain derivatives held for risk managementsuch as Forward
Exchange Contracts.

Property and Equipment

a. Recognition and Measurement
The cost of an item of property and equipment shall be recognized as an asset, initially recognized at cost, if,
and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity; and if the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Costincludes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the following:

- the cost of materials and direct labor;
- any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use;

- when the companyhas an obligation to remove the asset or restore the site, an estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located; and

- Capitalized borrowing costs.

The Company adopts cost model for entire class of property and equipment.Neither, class of the property
and equipment are measured at revaluation model nor is their fair value measured at the reporting date. The
items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

3%
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Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that
equipment.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable that the future economic benefits from the expenditure
will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance to keep the assets in working condition are
expensed as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment (calculated as the
difference between the net proceeds fromdisposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognized within
other income in statement of profit or loss.

b. Capital Work in Progress
Fixed assets under construction and cost of assets not ready for use are shown as capital work in progress.

C. Depreciation
Straight linemethod of depreciation on fixed assets is applied to allocate their cost to their residual values over
their estimated useful life as per management judgment, as follows:

Class of assets Revised useful life

Computer 5 Years

Furniture and Fixture 10 Years

Office Equipment 10Years

Other Fixed Assets 10 Years

Vehicle 10 Years

Building 50 Years

Leasehold 15 years or lease period whichever is lower

Software Over the contract period (5 years if contract period not available)

Assets costing less than Rs2,000 are fully charged to statement of profit loss in the year of purchase.

d. De-recognition
The carrying amount of Property and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from thede-recognition of an item of
property and equipment is included in statement of profit or loss when the item is derecognized (unless on a
sale and lease back).The gain shall beclassified as revenue.

3.8 Goodwill and Intangible Assets
Acquired Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are initially measured at fair value, which reflects market expectations of the probability that the
future economic benefits embodied in the asset will flow to the Company, and are amortized on the basis of their
expected useful lives.
Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. Costs associated with the development of software are capitalized where it is probable that it
will generate future economic benefits in excess of its cost. Computer software costs are amortized on the basis of
expected useful life. Costs associated with maintaining software are recognized as an expense as incurred.

At each reporting date, these assets are assessed for indicators of impairment. In the event that an asset’s carrying
amount is determined to be greater than its recoverable amount, the asset is written down immediately.Amortization
methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

3.9 Investment Property/Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
Investment Property

Investment properties includes land or land and buildings other than those classified as property and equipment and
non-currentassets held for sale. Generally, it includes land, land and building acquired by the Company as non-banking
assets but not sold as on the reporting date.

The Company holds investment property that has been acquired through enforcement of security over the loans and
advances.
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Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal
groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell
when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are FVTOCI in their present condition;
and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and liabilities in
a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described above.

3.10 IncomeTax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss except to
the extent that they relate to items recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

a. Current Tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current
tax payable also includes any tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends.

b. Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rate applicable to the Company as at the reporting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

3.11 Deposits, Debts Securities issued and subordinated liabilities

a. Deposits

The Company accepts deposits from its customers under savings account, current account and term deposits
whichallows moneyto be deposited and withdrawn by the account holder. These transactions are recorded on
the company's books, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Company and represents the
amount owed by the Company to the customer.

b. Debt Securities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are initially measured at fair value minus incremental
direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at their amortised cost using the effective interest method,
except where the Company designates liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The Company has not issued
any of such debt securities.

. Subordinated Liabilities

Subordinated liabilities are those liabilities which at the event of winding up are subordinate to the claims of
depositors, debt securities issued and other creditors. The Company does not have any of such subordinated
liabilities.

3.12 Provisions

The Company recognizes a provision if, as a result of past event, the Company has a present constructive or legal
obligation that can be reliability measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to
settle the obligation.

A disclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may but
probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

A provision for onerous contract is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligation under the contract.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. Contingent
assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the period
in which the change occurs.

3.13 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the course of the ordinary activities

3%
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of an entity when those inflows result in increases in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from equity
participants. Revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is not recognized during the period in which its recoverability of income
is not probable. The Company’s revenue comprises of interest income, fees and commission, remittance income, service
fee, etc. and the bases of incomes recognition are as follows:

a. Interest Income

Interest income on FVTOCI assets and financial assets held at amortised cost shall be recognized using
theCompany’s normal interest rate which is very close to effective interest rate using effective interest rate
method.

For income from loans and advances to customers, initial charges are not amortised over the life of the loan
and advances as the income so recognized closely approximates the income that would have been derived
under effective interest rate method. The difference is not considered material. The Company considers that the
cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit that would be derived from such
compliance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Contractual interest income
and expense on financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss is recognized within net interest
income.

The Company recognises the interest income on loans and advances as per Guideline on Recognition of Interest
Income, 2019.The Company has derecognised the interest income amounting to NPR7,895,243.33 in case of
loan where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 12 months in arrears, irrespective
of the net realizable value of collateral. Further, the Company has no interest income recognized in case of loans
where contractual payments of principal and/or interest are more than 3 months in arrears and where the “net
realizable value” of security is insufficient to cover payment of principal and accrued interest.

Interest capitalization as per NRB Directive No.2 (Para 39)

During the current fiscal year company has noloans and advances which has been utilized in the National Priority
sector and hence not capitalized and recognized any Interest Income.

b. Fees & Commission

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been provided or significant act
performed whenever the benefit exceeds cost in determining such value. Whenever, the cost of recognizing fees
and commissions on an accrual basis exceeds the benefit in determining such value, the fees and commissions
are charged off during the year.

. Dividendincome

Dividend income are recognized when right to receive such dividend is established. Usually this is the ex-
dividend date for equity securities. Dividends are presented in net trading income, net income from other
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss or other revenue based on the underlying classification
of the equity investment.

d. Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realised
and unrealised fair value changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

e. Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

Net income from other financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss relates to non-trading derivatives
held for risk management purposes that do not form part of qualifying hedge relationships and financial assets
and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. It includes all realized and unrealized fair value
changes, interest, dividends and foreign exchange differences.

3.14 Interest expense
Interest expense on all financial liabilities including deposits are recognized in profit or loss using effective interest rate
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method. Interest expense on all trading liabilities are considered to be incidental to the Company’s trading operations
and are presented together with all other changes in fair value of trading assets and liabilities in net trading income.

3.15 Employees Benefits

a. Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is also recognized for the amount expected to be paid under bonus
required by the Bonus Act, 2030 to pay the amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and
the obligation can be estimated reliably under short term employee benefits. The Company provides bonus
at 10% of Net Profit before tax.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period):

- wages, salaries and social security contributions,
- paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

- profit-sharing and bonuses and

- non-monetary benefits

b. Post-Employment Benefits
Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings;
i. Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Companypays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans arerecognised as personnel expenses in profit
or loss in the periods during which related services are rendered.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a pre-determined
rate of 10% of the basic salary. The Company does not assume any future liability for provident fund
benefits other than its annual contribution.

ii. Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The Companyrecognises all actuarial gains and losses net of deferred tax arising from defined benefit
plans immediately in other comprehensive income and all expenses related to defined benefit plans in
employee benefit expense in profit or loss.

The Companyrecognises gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement comprises any
resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost that had not previously been
recognised.

iii. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Company is demonstrably committed,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an
expense if the Companyhas made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be
accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12
months after the reporting date, then they are discounted to their present value.

3.16 Leases

Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term unless either:

3z
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3.20

3.21

(a) Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if the payments to the
lessors are not on that basis; or

(b) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate
for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases. If payments to the lessor vary because of factors other than
general inflation, then this condition is not met.

Majority of lease agreements entered by the Company are with the clause of normal increment of around 5% p.a. which
the management assumes are in line with the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Foreign Currency Translation
The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees (NPR).

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the date
of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional
currency rate of exchange at the statement of financial position date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions, and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at historical exchange rates if held at historical cost, or year-end
exchange rates if held at fair value, and the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in either the
statement of profit or loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the treatment of the gain or loss on the asset or liability.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of agreement.

Loan commitments are firm commitments to provide credit under pre-specified terms and conditions.Loan commitment
is the commitment where the Company has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a
customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the
Company has not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statement
as commitments.

Share Capital and Reserves

The Company classifies capital instruments as financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the substance
of the contractual terms of the instruments. Equity is defined as residual interest in total assets of the Company after
deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified as equity of the Company and distributions thereon are
presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares and preference shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which
they are declared.

The reserves include retained earnings and other statutory reserves such as general reserve, corporate social
responsibility reserve, investment adjustment reserve, regulatory reserve etc.

Regulatory reserve includes any amount derived as result of NFRS convergence with effect in retained earning
computed as per NRB Directive No. 4.

Earnings per share including diluted

The Companypresents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to
ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

Segment Reporting

The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8 Operating Segments. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the company’s management committee,
which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. Company has no
practice of accounting intra segment revenue or expenses. Geographical segments are considered for the purpose of
segment reporting. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are included in determining business
segment performance. The Company is organized for management and Head Office and branches. The segment results
that are reported include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly common assets, head office expenses, and tax assets and liabilities.
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Shree Investment & Finance Co. Ltd.

Explanatory Notes, Disclosures and Additional Information: FY 2077-78

5. Disclosures and Additional Information

1.1

Risk Management

Risk Management structure of the Company has set clear separation between business function and risk management
function. Accordingly, the Company has set up a separate Risk Management Committee (RMC) headed by Directoras
Coordinator of RMC. The RMC evaluate overall risk faced and determined the level of risks which will be in the best
interest of the Company. RMC oversees global, macro, micro and departmental level risk that arise out of daily
business operation as well as on periodic basis and are put to the oversight of Senior Management, Risk Management
Committee and the Board to discuss the reports thereon and issue instructions as appropriate. The RMC also develops
the mechanism for assessing and reviewing its risk management policies, processes and procedures for individual risk
elements, at a regular interval, based on the main findings of the monitoring reports and the results of analysis of
developments from external market changes and other environmental factors.

Board

Risk Management Committee CEO

| |
Compliance Officer Deputy CEO

Operaion Incharge

Figure: Risk Management — Structure

Risk Management Committee

Board of Directors is the apex and supreme authority of the Company and is responsible to frame and implement
robust policies and framework for effective compliance of regulation and direction issued by the regulatory
authority. BOD ensures the strategies, policies and procedure is in accordance with the risk appetite/tolerance
limit for effective management of risk within the Company. The board understands the nature of risk of the
company, and periodically reviews reports on risk management, including policies and standards, stress testing,
liquidity and capital adequacy through the reporting by the Risk Management.

Pursuant to the NRB directive on corporate governance, the Company has established Risk Management
Committee with well-defined terms of reference in line the NRB directive. At least four quarterly meeting
is conducted on annual basis however number of meeting can be increased as per the requirement. The
committee supervises overall risk management of the Company broadly classified as liquidity risk, market risk,
operational risk, credit risk and residual risk.

Risk Governance

Company has prepared and implemented policies and procedures to mitigate the risk at enterprises level arising
to the company and has inculcated risk culture among the employees by establishing ownership mentality,
capacity building programs, well defined job responsibilities and inhabiting good ethical culture.

Through its Risk Management Framework, the Company seeks to efficiently manage credit, market and liquidity
risks which arise directly through the Company’s commercial activities as well as operational, regulatory and
reputational risks which arise as a normal consequence of any business undertaking.

The Risk Management Committee is responsible for the establishment of, and compliance with, policies relating
to management risk, supply risk, production risk, demand risk and collection risk.

The Company’s risk governance structure is such that the responsibility for maintaining risk within the
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Company's risk blanket is cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate functional, client business, senior
management and committees. Information regarding material risk issues and compliance with policies and
standards is communicated through the business, functional, senior management and committees.

iii.  Risk Management Policy Guidelines

The Company does not have separate Risk Management Policy for overall risk management function. However,
the Company follows Nepal Rastra Bank’s Risk Management Guidelines, 2010 in order to provide a framework
for ensuring setting up of systematic Risk Management function at Shree Investment and Finance Company
limited. NRB’s “Risk Management Guidelines, 2010” is a foundation stone towards identification, measurement,
monitoring and control of all the major risks that the company is exposed. “Risk Management Guidelines, 2010”
of the NRB provides guidance for designing the Risk Management Process and the same includes policies,
standards, methodologies, procedures and limits for the implementation of the process.

iv. Internal Control
The Board is responsible for ensuring the Company has appropriate internal control framework in place that
supports the achievement of the strategies and objectives. The various functions of the Company should be
looked upon with a view to establish a proper control mechanism is in place during expansion and growth
which enables it to maximize profitable business opportunities, avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss
or reputational damage, ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations and enhance resilience to
external events.

The Board has set policies and procedures of risk identification, risk evaluation, risk mitigation and control/
monitoring, in line with the NRB directives has effectively implemented the same at the Company.

The effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control system is reviewed regularly by the Board, its Committees,
Management and Internal Audit (outsourced to external party).

The Internal Audit monitors compliance with policies/standards and the effectiveness of internal control
structures across the Company through regular audit, Off Site review, AML/CFT/KYC audit and Risk based
Internal Audit (RBIA) approach. The audits observations are reported to the Chief Executive Officer and Business
Heads for initiating immediate corrective measures. Internal Audit reports are periodically forwarded to the
Audit Committee for review and the committee issues appropriate corrective action in accordance with the
issue involved to the respective department, regional offices or branch offices.

v. Risk Identified and its mitigation

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the probability of loss of principal and reward associated with it due to failure of counterparty
to meet its contractual obligations to pay the Company in accordance with agreed terms. The Credit Policy
Guideline have been prepared in order to mitigate/minimize the credit risk of the Company through appropriate
monitoring and reporting framework established within the Company.

Company has implemented various System/ Policies/ Procedures/ Guidelines for the effective management of
Credit Risk. For the purpose of assessment of credit risk of the company, following activities were carried out:

Current system/policies/procedures/guidelines formulated were gone through;

Actual Exposure of credit limit product wise, segment wise were checked against Risk Appetite, tolerance
limit mentioned in Respective Product Paper Guidelines and Credit Policy;

Review of various reports prepared by the Departments such as Monitoring Report, Loan Overdue Report,
Loan Report, NRB reports and risk assessment reports.

Risk Management Committee (RMC) is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors hence Overall
strategy as well as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management is
responsible for implementing the company’s credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring that
procedures are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in accordance
with these policies.

Company has following framework in place for the management of credit risk:

Board of Directors of the Company has approved Credit Policy.

The Board of Directors has approved product papers which need to be approved by the Board of Directors
as per regulatory requirement.

The Board level Risk Management Committee reviews various credit risks reported by the management
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and recommends the Board for management of identified credit risk.

Credit Department directly manages accounts with sustained deterioration along with all collection
related activities.

Following major policies and procedural guidelines has been reviewed/approved and implemented to manage
the Credit Risk.

e  Credit Policy, 2070

*  Product paper for Financing in personal Housing Loan, SME loan, real estate loan and personal loan
¢ Loan Write off Bylaws, 2073

*  Guidelines on Small and Medium Enterprises Loan

Further, the Company has Credit Departments in place which are responsible for performing prescribed
activities related to credit. Primary responsibility for management of credit risk lies with the Credit departments.
Department is also responsible to perform the activities as per existing internal control system established in
line with the prescribed policies, guidelines and procedures for management of credit risk.

Credit Risk Management is ultimately the responsibility of the Board of Directors Hence Overall strategy as well
as significant policies has to be reviewed by the board regularly. Further, Senior Management is responsible for
implementing the Company’s credit risk management strategies and policies and ensuring that procedures
are put in place to manage and control credit risk and the quality of credit portfolio in accordance with these
policies.

Maximum exposure to credit risk
The Company has financial assets consisting mainly of loans & advances and investments at amortized cost. In
these cases, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the carrying amount of the related financial assets.

Credit quality of neither past due nor impaired nor past due or impaired
The table below shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk, based on
the Company’s internal credit rating system.

NPR in million

Neither past Past due Past due
due less than More i
. Past due 91 Individually
Particulars t0 180 days impaired Total
nor im- than 180
paired 90 days days
Financial Assets
Assets carried at Amortised Cost
Cash and cash equivalent 494 - - - - 494
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 212 - - - - 212
Placement with Bank and Financial ) ) ) ) ) )
Institutions
Loans and advances 4484.83 34.42 6.48 1.17 23.10 4,550
Fair Value through Profit and Loss
(EVTPL)
Derivative financial instruments. - - - - - -
Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Investment securities 2,442 - - - - 2,442
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -
Total 7,632.83 34.42 6.48 1.17 23.10 7,698

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of potential loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes,
people and systems or from the impact of external events, including legal risks for the company. Operational
Risk is pervasive across all the functions of the Company and is influenced by all resources, including human
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resource, systems and procedural designs, deployed by the Company to carry out those functions. Operational
Risk can be caused by both internal and external sources such as fraud, business interruptions, system failures,
damage to physical infrastructure, failure in execution and service delivery, inherent risks in products, customers,
inadequacy in procedures or flawed process designs, and business practices. The risk can occur in any business
function or the business supporting functions.

The Company is committed to be governed with a strong culture of risk management and ethical business
practices and therefore to averse it from potentially damaging operational risk events and is in a sound position
to deal effectively with those events that do occur. The actions of the board and senior management, and
policies, processes and systems provide the foundation for a sound risk management culture

Company seek to minimize our exposure to operational risk by use of key control standards, key control self-
assessments and key risk indicators as toolkits to identify, assess, monitor and control operational risk events
through timely acknowledgement of emerging threats and underlying vulnerabilities. The Company shall also
ensure highest level of governance standards and adherence to Code of Conduct and robust compliance to all
regulatory as well as the Company'’s internal policy, procedures and guidelines.

Effective policies, procedural guidelines and standard operating procedure are crucial tools for sound risk
management. Therefore, adequacy and effectiveness of the policies and procedures and their effective
implementation is closely monitored by the department to ensure that they have continuing relevance in line
with regulatory requirement and adjusts to dynamic risk environment of the industry.

Following major existing Policies/ guiding documents having close bearing with management of operation risk
has been reviewed/approved and implemented:

% Operating Manual for Cash Department, 2066

¢+ Branch/ Department Establishment and Operation Policy, 2073

¢ KYC Policy and Manual, 2073

< Internal Audit Manual, 2065

+ Investment Policy, 2070

% Financial Administration By-law, 2073

« Employee Service By-laws, 2074

% Vehicle Policy, 2067

¢ Election By Laws, 2064

% Computer and Information Policy and Manual, 2066

% Money laundering Policy and Manual, 2073

% Cash Management Manual, 2066

¢+ Policy and Procedural guidelines for Anti-Money Laundering, 2076

+ Operation Guidelines, 2076

% Operation Guidelines on Saving Account of each Nepali Citizens, 2076
+ Internal Audit Directive 2065

% Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 2075

Market Risk& Liquidity Risk

Market risk refers to the risk to a Company resulting from movements in market prices, in particular, changes
in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity and commodity prices. Market risk is defined as the risk of
losses in on and off-balance sheet positions arising from movements in market prices. The risks subject to this
requirement are:

a. Interest Rate Risk: Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

b. Currency Risk: Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value
of its assets, liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value
between the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency.

c.  Equity Price Risk: Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument
or its issuer, or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The major sources of market risk for the company are interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.
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Company identifies and manage these risks as per the laid down policies and procedures. The company
regularly assess and monitor the financial position and transaction of the Company.Movement of Company's
interest yield, cost and spread is calculated and analyzed on daily basis to identify, assess and mitigate possible
risk exposure.

In order to evaluate the liquidity position, Company has been calculating and evaluating liquidity ratio. Major
inflows/outflows having impact on the liquidity is monitored. Transactions which have material impact on the
liquidity position of the Company are communicated without any delay to relevant department that manages
fund. Also, regulatory limit of credit deposit position is also monitored.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on an undiscounted cash flow basis
which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity outgo arises,
taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

Amount in NPR Million

Particulars Liiz:::? ni)t:t:s 6 to 1 year M:r;::ran Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalent 494 - - - 494
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 212 - - - 212
Placement with Bank and Financial Insti- ) ) ) ) )
tutions

Derivative financial instruments. - - - - -
Other trading assets - - - - -
Loans and advances 306 459 2,340 1,445 4,550
Investment Securities 2,442 - - - 2,442
Investment in subsidiaries - - - - -
Investment in associates - - - - -
Other assets 74 - - - 74
Total 3,528 459 2,340 1,445 7,772
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 658 - - - 658
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - - -
Deposits from customers 1,070 - 2,296 2,518 5,884
Borrowing - - - - -
Other liabilities 51 - - 6 57
Debt securities issued - - - - -
Total 1,780 - 2,296 2,524 6,600

5.2

Capital Management

5.2.1 Qualitative disclosures

The Company assesses and maintains primary and secondary capital as per Form No 1.1 and 1.2 provided in
NRB Directive 1.

The Company maintains an actively managed capital base to cover risks inherent in the business and is
meetingthe capital adequacy requirements of the Nepal Rastra Bank. The adequacy of the Company'’s capital is
monitored using, among other measures, the rules and ratios established by the Basel Committee and adopted
by the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and sustain the future development of the business.

The Company has complied with Capital Adequacy requirement of the Nepal Rastra Bank.

The Company’s regulatory capital consists of the following elements

%z
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Reg

5.2.2

Tier 1 Capital or Core Capital, which includes Paid Up Capital, Statutory General Reserves, Capital Redemption
Reserve, Retained Earnings and deductions of Deferred Tax Assets, Miscellaneous expenditure not written off,
Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests

Tier 2 Capital or Supplementary Capital, which includes General Loan Loss Provision, Exchange Equalization
Reserves, Subordinated Term Debt, Investment Adjustment Reserve, Other Reserve

ulatory minimum paid up capital

Finance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated minimum paid up
capital of NPR 800million by mid-July 2017. As on the reporting date, the Company’s paid up capital stood at
NPR 890.13million (Previous Year NPR 829.03Million) and is in compliance with the requirement.

Quantitative disclosures

a) Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
i Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components
. This Year |Previous Year
SN Particulars (NPRin‘000) | (NPR in 000)
A | Paid up Equity Share Capital 890,135 829,035
B | Irredeemable Non-cumulative preference shares - -
C | Share Premium - -
D | Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - -
E | Statutory General Reserves 225,037 202,146
F | Retained Earnings 99,438 89,366
G | Un-audited current year cumulative profit/(loss) - -
H | Capital Redemption Reserve - -
| | Capital Adjustment Reserve - -
J | Dividend Equalization Reserves - -
K | Other Free Reserve - -
L | Less: Goodwill - -
M | Less: Deferred Tax Assets - -
N | Less: Fictitious Assets - -
O | Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -
P | Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests - -
Q | Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits - -
R | Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments - -
S | Less: Reciprocal crossholdings - -
T | Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and unutilized 70,302 70,302
U | Less: Other Deductions - -
Adjustments under Pillar Il
SRP 6.4a(1) |Less: Shortfall in Provision - -
SRP 6.4a(2) Less:’ Loans & F'acilities extended to related parties and ) )
restricted lending
Core (Tier 1 Capital) 1,144,308 1,050,244
ii.  Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components
. This Year Previous Year
SN Particulars (NPRin‘000) | (NPRin‘000)
a Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share - -
b Subordinated Term Debt - -
d Hybrid Capital Instruments - -
d General loan loss provision 58,666 43,188
e Exchange Equalization Reserve - -
f Investment Adjustment Reserve 849 -
g Asset Revaluation Reserve - -

sl aiffd gfdaes 006/ o0ls¢

%R



(e <% e T i g S )

@ 7t ScACdice UUS WISallcd ob. .

%? Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

h Other Reserves - -
Total Supplementary Capital 59,515 43,188
The Company has not issued any subordinated term debt.

iii.  Total qualifying capital

S.N. Particulars This. Year Previcfus Year
(NPR in‘000) (NPR in‘000)
Core Capital 1,144,308 1,050,244
B Supplementary Capital 59,515 43,188
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 1,203,823 1,093,432
iv.  Capital Adequacy Ratio
S.N. Particulars ;:iisovz’i/:r) PreR‘;it?:?o/Y;ar
A | Core Capital 23.67 18.69
B | Supplementary Capital 1.23 0.77
Total Qualifying Capital (Total Capital Fund) 24.90 19.46

V. Summary of Company’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of capital to support current and
future activities, if applicable

The Company prepares Budget and Strategyand to achieve the long term plans the Company prepares
annual Budgets/ Operating/ Tactical plans as stipulated in the Budget Policy and strategy Document
of the Company. To ensure that the Company’s capital adequacy commensurate to demand of the
Company’s capital required by the business planning, the Management and the Board prudently and
proactively engage on ongoing process of capital and risk assessment, stress testing and scenarios
testing, monitoring and reporting.

The Company follows Stress Testing Guidelines issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in order to assess the
vulnerability of the Company under various stress situations typically, application of “what if” scenarios,
especially in the problematic identification of low frequency but high severity events and identifying
expected and unexpected losses. It focuses on capturing the impact of large, but still plausible events
and understanding the overall risk profile in a coherent and consistent framework, including impact
analysis on earnings, solvency and liquidity.

vi.  Summary of the terms, conditions and main features of all capital instruments, especially in case of
subordinated term debts including hybrid capital instruments

Ordinary share capital: The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of NPR 100
per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares
held by the shareholders.

b) Risk Exposures
i. Risk weighted exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk and Operational Risk

S.N. Risk Weighted Exposure Amount in NPR’000’
A Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 4,406,895
B Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 427175

Amount to be maintained for Market Risk -

Total Risk Weighted Exposure 4,834,070
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk
At the month end of Ashadh, 2078

(NPR. in '000)
Specific | Eligible Risk Risk
A. Balance Sheet Exposures Book Value Przvision C%M Net Value Weight Weighted
Exposures
A b C d=a-b-c e f=d*e
Cash Balance 67,581.99 67,581.99 0%
Balance With Nepal Rastra Bank 212,315.25 212,315.25 0%
Gold 0%
Investment in Nepalese Government Securities 2,237,700.00 2,237,700.00 0%
All Claims on Government of Nepal 0%
Investment in Nepal Rastra Bank securities 0%
All claims on Nepal Rastra Bank 0%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA 0-1) 0%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -2) 20%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -3) 50%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA-4-6) 100%
Claims on Foreign Government and Central Bank (ECA -7) 150%
Claims On BIS, IMF, ECB, EC and MDB's recognized by the 0%
framework
Claims on Other Multilateral Development Banks 100%
Claims on Domestic Public Sector Entities 100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 0-1) 20%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 2) 50%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 3-6) 100%
Claims on Public Sector Entity (ECA 7) 150%
Claims on domestic banks that meet capital adequacy 426,705.55 426,705.55 20% 85,341.11
requirements
Claims on domestic banks that do not meet capital ade- 100%
quacy requirements
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 0-1) 20%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 2) 50%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 3-6) 100%
Claims on foreign bank (ECA Rating 7) 150%
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region 20%
operating with a buffer of 1% above their respective regu-
latory capital requirement
Claims on Domestic Corporates 828,538.96 828,538.96 100%| 828,538.96
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 0-1) 20%
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 2) 50%
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 3-6) 100%
Claims on Foreign Corporates (ECA 7) 150%
Regulatory Retail Portfolio (Not Overdue) 1,589,781.99 86,028.00| 1,503,753.99 75%| 1,127,815.50
Claims fulfilling all criterion of regularity retail except 129,150.00 129,150.00 100%| 129,150.00
granularity
Claims secured by residential properties 672,465.82 672,465.82 60%| 403,479.49
Claims not fully secured by residential properties 150%
Claims secured by residential properties (Overdue) 2,687.90 2,687.90 100% 2,687.90
Claims secured by Commercial real estate 643,283.97 643,283.97 100%| 643,283.97
Past due claims (except for claims secured by residential 25,623.78 24,638.93 984.84 150% 1,477.27
properties)
High Risk claims 288,600.00 288,600.00 150% | 432,900.00

qagal e gfaded 2000/09¢ %9



(3 T, e T Y g T <)

@‘“‘\\, 9N ScaCdice UUs HISallo . [a.

g

%/ Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

Lending Against Securities (Bonds & Shares) 407,704.30 407,704.30 100%| 407,704.30
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of 85,790.56 85,790.56 100% 85,790.56
institutions listed in stock exchange
Investments in equity and other capital instruments of 752.50 752.50 150% 1,128.75
institutions not listed in the stock exchange
Staff loan secured by residential property 40,278.96 40,278.96 50% 20,139.48
Interest Receivable/claim on government securities 30,646.75 30,646.75 0% -
Cash in transit and other cash items in the process of 20%
collection
Other Assets (as per attachment) 237,153.74 237,153.74 100%| 237,153.74
TOTAL (A) 7,926,762.02 24,638.93 86,028.00|7,816,095.09 4,406,591.03
Specific A . q l.“Sk
B. Off Balance Sheet Exposures Book Value Provision Eligible CRM | NetValue | RiskWeight | Weighted
Exposures
Revocable Commitments 0%
Bills Under Collection 0%
Forward Exchange Contract Liabilities 10%
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Upto 6 months 20%
domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 20%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 50%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 100%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 150%
LC Commitments With Original Maturity Over 6 months 50%
domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 20%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 50%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 100%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 150%
Bid Bond, Performance Bond and Counter guarantee 100.00 100.00 50% 50.00
domestic counterparty
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 0-1) 20%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 2) 50%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 3-6) 100%
Foreign counterparty (ECA Rating 7) 150%
Underwriting commitments 50%
Lending of Bank's Securities or Posting of Securities as 100%
collateral
Repurchase Agreements, Assets sale with recourse 100%
Advance Payment Guarantee 100%
Financial Guarantee 100%
Acceptances and Endorsements 100%
Unpaid portion of Partly paid shares and Securities 100%
Irrevocable Credit commitments (short term) 20%
Irrevocable Credit commitments (long term) 50%
Claims on foreign bank incorporated in SAARC region operating 20%
with a buffer of 1% above their respewctive regulatory capital
requirement
Other Contingent Liabilities 254.20 254.20 100% 254.20
Unpaid Guarantee Claims 200%
TOTAL (B) 354.20 354.20 304.20
Total RWE for credit Risk Before Adjustment (A) +(B) (7,927,116.23 24,638.93 86,028.00|7,816,449.29 4,406,895.23
Adjustments under Pillar Il
Total RWE for Credit Risk after Bank's adjustments 7,927,116.23 24,638.93 86,028.00|7,816,449.29 4,406,895.23
under Pillar Il
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Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk

At the quarter end of Ashadh, 2078

(NPR in '000)

S.N Particulars Fiscal Year

o 2074/075 2075/076 2076/077

1 Net Interest Income 189,270.90 258,527.50| 259,385.10

2 Commission and Discount Income 39,130.37 36,991.98| 38,050.08

3 Other Operating Income 3,400.52 3,139.40 4,655.49

4 Exchange Fluctuation Income

5 Addition/Deduction in Interest Suspense during the period (1,005.54) 1,160.84| 21,644.12

6 |Grossincome (a) 230,796.26| 299,819.72| 323,734.78

7 Alfa (b) 15% 15% 15%

8 |Fixed Percentage of Gross Income [c=(axb)] 34,619.44 44,972.96| 48,560.22

9 |Capital Requirement for operational risk (d) (average of ) 42,717.54

10 |Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 10%) in times (e) 10

11 |Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [f=(dxe)] 427,175.38

SRP6.4a (8) Adjustments under Pillar Il  (If Gross Income for the last three years is negative)

1 |Total Credit and Investment (net of Specific Provision) of related month -

2 | Capital Requirement for Operational Risk (5% of net credit and investment) -

3 |Risk Weight (reciprocal of capital requirement of 11%) in times 9.09

4  |Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure (g) -

5 |Equivalent Risk Weight Exposure [h=f+g] 427,175.38
c) Amount of NPAs (both Gross and Net)

FY 2020-21 FY 2019-20
Amount in NPR Amountin NPR
Particulars
‘000’ ‘000’
Gross NPAs | Provision Net NPAs | Gross NPAs | Provision Net NPAs

Restructured / Reschedule Loans 9,850 1,231 8,619 - - -
Sub Standard Loans 6,480 1,620 4,860 1,511 378 1,133
Doubtful Loans 1,171 586 585 20,942 10,471 10,471
Loss 23,102 23,102 - 8,903 8,903 -
Total NPAs 40,603 26,539 14,064 31,356 19,752 11,604
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53 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets Notes As at 15 July 2021 As at 15 July 2020
Carrying Value Fair value | Carrying Value Fair value
Assets
Assets carried at Amortised Cost
Cash and cash equivalent 4.1 494,287,541 494,287,541 1,009,031,937| 1,009,031,937
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2 212,315,251 212,315,251 195,228,350 195,228,350
Placement with Bank and Financial Institu- 43 ) . ) )
tions ’
Loans and advances to customers 47 4,287,464,301 4,287,464,301 | 4,431,632,137| 4,431,632,137
4,994,067,093 | 4,994,067,093 | 5,635,892,423 | 5,635,892,423
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Derivative financial instruments. 4.4 - - - -
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)
Investment securities 4.8 2,441,864,964| 2,417,649,759 543,823,909 543,823,909
Investment in subsidiaries 4.1 - - - -
2,441,864,964 | 2,417,649,759| 543,823,909 543,823,909
Liabilities
Liabilities carried at Amortised Cost
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 417 658,619,490 658,619,490 199,640,747 199,640,747
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4.18 - - 35,396,658 35,396,658
Deposits from customers 4.2 5,884,292,468 | 5,884,292,468| 5,062,946,753| 5,062,946,753
Debt securities issued 4.24 - - - -
6,542,911,958 | 6,542,911,958 | 5,297,984,158 | 5,297,984,158
Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTPL)
Derivative financial instruments 419 - - - -
5.3.1 FairValue Hierarchy of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amount in NPR
Fair value As at As at
Hierarchy 15 July 2021 15 July 2020
(Level)
Fair Value through profit and loss
Financial Assets
Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -
Financial Liabilities
Forward exchange Contract held for trading - -
Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
Financial assets
Investment securities at OCI
- Quoted equity securities 1 172,765,717 88,215,620
- Unquoted equity securities 3 752,500 752,500
Investment in subsidiaries - -
Total 173,518,217 88,968,120
Financial Instruments held at amortised cost
As at As at
15 July 2021 16 July 2020
Financial assets
Debt securities - -
Government bonds 2,268,346,747 454,855,789
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Government treasury bills 3 - -
Nepal Rastra Bank bonds 3 - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 3 262,048,500 213,345,000
Loans and advances to customers 3 4,287,464,301 4,431,632,137
Accounts receivable 71,675,531 960,800
Accrued Income - -
Total 6,889,535,080 5,100,793,726
Financial liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 3 658,619,490 199,640,747
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 3 - 35,396,658
Deposits from customers 3 5,884,292,468 5,062,946,753
Borrowing 3 - -
Provisions 3 - -
Other liabilities 3 56,791,507 58,373,150
Debt securities issued 3 - -
Subordinated Liabilities 3 - -
Total 6,599,703,465 5,336,357,308

5.4 Segment Analysis

5.4.1 General Information
The Company’s segmental reporting is in accordance with NFRS 8, Operating Segments. Operating segments are
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the company’s toplevel management,
which is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments.

5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

In NPR
Particulars Head Office| Branch Offices Total

Revenue from external customers 450,466,792 298,232,248 748,699,040
Intersegment revenues - - -
Net Revenue 450,466,792 298,232,248 748,699,040
Interest Revenue 381,749,766 285,762,974 667,512,739
Interest Expenses 253,249,671 1 97,880,852 451 ,1 30,524
Net |nterest revenue 1 28,500,094 87,882,1 21 21 6,382,21 6
Depreciation and amortization 4,177,614 2,757,900 6,935,514
Segment proﬁt/(loss) 88,803,308 75,899,977 164,703,285
Entity’s interest in the profit or loss of associates - - -
accounted for using equity method
|mpairment of assets 39,795,964 47,1 30,046 86,926,01 0
Segment assets 5,610,705,679 2,290,905,594 7,901,611,273
Segment liabilities 3,807,612,638 2,814,81 5,145 6,622,427,783

sl aiffd gfdaes 006/ o0ls¢

2




AR

\!

(e < Fware T o g S )

é@ 7t ScACdice UUS WISallcd ob. .

Shree Investment and Finance Co. Itd.

5.4.3 Reconciliation of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

In NPR
Revenue Amount

Total revenue for reportable segments 748,699,040
Other revenues -
Elimination of intersegment revenues -
Entity's revenues 748,699,040
Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segment 164,703,285
Other profit or loss -
Elimination of intersegment profits -
Unallocated amount -
Profit before income tax 164,703,285
Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 7,901,611,273
Other assets -

Unallocated amounts

Entity's assets 7,901,611,273
Liabilities
Total liabilities for reportable segments 6,622,427,783
Other liabilities -
Unallocated liabilities -
Entity's liabilities 6,622,427,783
Information about geographical areas
. Province | Bagmati | Gandaki | Lumbini | Karnali
Particulars . . . . Total
1 Province | Province | Province | Province
Interest Income 58,280 413,884 89,233 104,196 1,919 667,513
Fees & Commission
Income 1,997 16,680 2917 4,305 167 26,065
Other Operating Income 14 54,339 472 283 14 55,121
Total Revenue 60,290 484,903 92,622 108,784 2,100| 748,699
Percentage (%) 8.05% 64.77% 12.37% 14.53% 0.28% 100%

5.4.4 Information about major customers

The Company does not have any major customers which accounts for more than 10% of entity’s revenue.

5.5 Share Options and Share based Payment
The Company does not have a policy for share options to its employees. Similarly, during the year the Company has not
made any payments or settlements by issuing new shares to its employees.

5.6 Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

Details of contingent liabilities and commitments are given in note 4.28.

5.6.1 Income Tax Liability

The Company has received assessment order from Inland Revenue Department (IRD) on the income tax return
filed under self-assessment for the financial year2051/52, 2052/53, and 2053/54assessing additional tax liability
of Rs 1,070,247.98. The Company hadappealed against assessment order received from tax office in Revenue
Tribunal depositing Rs 816,045.23 as advance tax and security deposit. The case was decided in favor of the
Company by Revenue Tribunal on Chaitra 2059 and in certain aspects by Supreme Court. Letter was sent to
Inland Revenue Department, Babar Mahal for adjustment of remaining amount Rs 254,202.75 which has been
disclosed as Contingent liability in Note 4.28.

The Company has filed tax returns to the IRD up to the financial years 2076/77 under self-assessment procedures
and assessment up to FY 2072-73 has been completed by IRD.
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5.7 Related Party Disclosures

The Company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

Name Relationship
Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Samson J.B. Rana Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director

Lilamani Neupane, Chief Executive Office Key Managerial Personnel

5.7.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 5,33,000 during the fiscal year. There were 13Board
Meetings conducted during the fiscal year.

The Chairperson and other members of the Board are paidNPR 9,000 and NPR 8000 per meeting respectively
for Board meeting.

The composition of Board of Directors is as follows:

Name of the Director Position
Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Samson J.B. Rana Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director

The Board Members have not been providedwith any facilities other than meeting allowances.

5.7.2 Amount paid to Chief Executive Officer
The Board of Directors have appointed Mr.Lilamani Neupane as Chief Executive Officer of the Company with
effect from 2074/08/23 for the period of 4 years. CEO has been paid a total of NPR. 7,270,462and has been
provided vehicle facility for official purpose.
The Salary and benefits paid to the CEO are as follow:
. Provident Other Per- Total In-
Basic Salary Allowance | Bonus . .
Fund quisites come
3,848,808 384,881 952,500 1,974,465 109,808 (7,270,462
5.7.3 Compensation Details for Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel includes members of Management Committee of the Company and includes the

following members;

Name Designation
Sashi Raj Pandey Chairman
Samson J.B. Rana Director
Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga Director
Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle Director
Mahesh Pd. Adhikari Director
Lilamani Neupane Chief Executive Officer
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The compensation paid to the Key Management Personnel’s as below:

# Particulars Amount in NPR

1 Compensation to members of BOD 533,000

2 Compensation to CEO 7,270,462
Total of Key Management Personnel Compensation 7,803,462

Events after reporting date

The Company monitors and assesses events that may have potential impact to qualify as adjusting and / or non-
adjusting events after the end of the reporting period. All adjusting events are adjusted in the books with additional

disclosures and non-adjusting material events are disclosed in the notes with possible financial impact, to the extent
ascertainable.

There are no material events that have occurred subsequent to 15 July 2021 till the signing of this financial statement
on 30November 2021.

Non-Banking Assets

Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal
groups) are classified as held for sale and measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to
sell when: (i) their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are FVTOCI in their present
condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable. Non-Banking Assets (NBA) has been shown under investment property.
It has been recognized at lower of fair value or amount due at the time of assumption of NBA.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and liabilities
in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described above.

In NPR
Name of Borrowers Date of assuming As at As at
Non-Banking Assets 15 July 2021 15 July 2020
Kamal Khawas 13t July 2003 701,250 701,250
Shambhu Thapa 19% June 2008 300,000 300,000
1,001,250 1,001,250

5.9.1 Movement of Non-Banking Assets

Particulars 2020/21 2019/20
Outstanding Balance as at 16 July 2020 - -
Add: Assets accepted during the year - -
Less: Assets sold during the year - -
Less: Net Changes in fair value - -
Outstanding Balance as at 15 July 2021 - -

5.10 Maturity Analysis

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities analyzed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.
Trading assets and liabilities including derivatives have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months,
regardless of the actual contractual maturities of the products. With regard to loans and advances to customers, the
Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behavior as used for estimating the EIR. Issued debt reflect the
contractual coupon amortizations.

5.11 Operating Lease Commitments
The Company leases a number of branch and office premises under operating leases. These leases have an average life
of between three and ten years. Lease payments are increased every two years to reflect market rentals. No contingent
rent is payable.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as at the reporting date are as follows:
In NPR
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars 15 July 2021 15 July 2020
Within 1 year 7,332,230 7,269,397
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 21,873,740 24,594,954
Later than 5 years 9,242,473 10,883,344
38,448,443 42,747,695
9g TRl NG FRIde 06/0l6¢
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5.12 Earnings per share

NAS 33 Earnings per Share.

The amount of operating lease expenses recognized in profit or loss amounts to NPR 7,570,098 and NPR 6,158,416
for the FY 2020/21 and FY 2019/20 respectively. Lease Equalization Reserve of NPR 995,096 and NPR 422,690
have been presented in other liabilities of FY 2020/21 and FY 2019/20 respectively.

The Company measures earning per share on the basis of the earning attributable to the equity shareholders for the
period. The number of shares is taken as the weighted average number of shares for the relevant period as required by

Particulars Units Year ended Year ended
15 July 2021 15 July 2020
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (a) NPR. 114,456,732 111,921,042
Wel.ghted average of number of equity shares used in com- NoS. 8,901,349 8,290,350
puting basic earnings per share (b)
Basic and diluted earnings per equity share of Rs 100 each (a/b) Rs 12.86 13.50

are equal for the period presented.

5.13 Unpaid Dividends

As there are no potential ordinary shares that would dilute current earning of equity holders, basic EPS and diluted EPS

As at the reporting date, unpaid dividend over five years are as follows.

NPR. '000
Particulars Asat Asat
15 July 2021 16 July 2020
Not collected for more than 5 years 503 726
Not collected up to 5 years 4,841 4,841
Total 5,344 5,568
5.14 Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread

Particulars 2020/21 2019/20
Cost on deposit liabilities 7.62 9.35
Yield on loans and advances 11.07 14.16
Net spread 3.45 4.81

Above yield and cost is calculated based on the annual average volume of loans, investments, deposits, government
bonds and other bonds/borrowings.

5.15 Employees Training and Development Fund
NRB Circular 10/073/74 requires banks and financial institutions to incur expenses towards employee training and
development equivalent to at least 3% of the preceding year’s total staff expenses. However, exemption was provided
for the same for the FY 2076/77 and 2077/78.The expenses for the year out of the last year reserve is NPR396,204. The
closing balance of employees training and development fund is nil. In the subsequent year, balance in this fund will be
reclassified to Retained Earnings and recognized as Personnel Expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.
Particulars Amount (NPR)
Opening Balance 396,204
Addition during the Year -
Less: Training Expenses for the year 418,169
Charged to PL Account 21,965
5.16 Corporate Social Responsibility

NRB Circular 11/073/74 requires banks and financial institutions to create Corporate Social Responsibility Fund and
annually appropriate an amount equivalent to 1% of net profit into this fund. The fund is created towards covering the
Company’s expense in CSR activities in the subsequent year. Accordingly, the Company appropriated NPR 1,158,840to
this fund for the reported period. In subsequent year, balance in this fund will be reclassified to Retained Earning and
recognized as CSR Expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense- The expenses for the period on Corporate Social Responsibility amounts to
NPR1,656,165.
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Particulars Amount NPR
Opening Balance 1,926,498
Add: 1% of Net Profit of this year 1,158,840
Less: Expenses for this year (1,656,165)
Closing Balance 1,429,173

5.17 Regulatory Reserve

As required by NRB directive # 4, the Company has created Regulatory Reserve and movement of reserve during the
year is as follows:

Particulars Amount (NPR) Amount (NPR)
Opening Balance 7,568,417
Transfer to/from Reserve
Interest receivable (-)/previous accrued interest

. 4,486,584
received (+)
Reversa! of Deferred Tax Asset on subsequent 806,079 i
calculation
Closing balance 2,275,754

Interest receivable includes Rs. 2,806,302received after Ashad end 2078 till Bhadra 15 2078.Rs. 4,486,584 (Previous Year
Rs. 4,621,292 was credited) has been debited from regulatory reserve from interest receivable of Rs. 5,071,161 after
deducting outstanding interest on bad loan (Rs. 7,895,243.33) net of bonus &taxes.

Further Deferred tax assets is now transferred from regulatory reserve to deferred tax liabilities on subsequent
calculation as there is deferred tax liabilities on financial statement for the period.

The movement on regulatory reserve over the reporting period in line with guidelines for publication of Financial
Statement, Dividend declaration and Annual General Meeting 2077 has been presented as:

Amount in NPR

Short Fair Value
T Provision | Short Pro- Deferred Gainon | Actuarial Joss Rec-
FY Particular . Short LLP | for Possible | vision on Goodwill | Bargain | Loss Rec- o Other Total
Receivable Tax . ognized in
lossonIn- | NBA Purchase | ognized ocl
vestment
Opening Balance
Transfer From Regulatory
Reserve to RE
Transfer to Regulatory
- ! - - - - 48, ,333,384
§ Reserve from RE 1,292,153 4,386,259 806,079 848,893) 733338
§ Closing Balance 7,333,384 - - - - - - - - -| 7,333,384
Opening Balance 7,333,384 - - - - - - - - -| 7,333,384
Transfer From Regulatory
Reserve to RE 1,292,153 e ) ) ) ] ) ) | 5678412
Transfer to Regulatory
913,44 - - - - - - - - -
% Reserve from RE S48 5,913,445
S Closing Balance 7,568,417 - - - - - - - - -| 7,568,417
Opening Balance 7,568,417 7568417
Transfer From Regulatory
Reserve to RE S48 i i i 806,079 ) ) i i 6,719,524
Transfer to Regulatory
£ |Reserve from RE 1,426,861 ) ) ) ) ) ) ) ) | 1426861
S | Closing Balance 2,275,754 - - - - - - - - -| 2,275,754

5.18 Provision for Employee Bonus

The Company has provided NPR 18,300,365 (Previous year NPR17,506,306) as employee bonus computed at 10% of profit before
tax.
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5.19 Proposed Distributions (Dividend and Bonus Shares)

The Board of directors in its meeting dated 30 November,2021 has passed a resolution recommending for distribution
of bonus shares (stock dividend) at 7.70% (approx.) and cash dividend at 3.30% (approx.) of paid up capital as at July

15,2021.
Amount in NPR
Particulars 31 Ashadh 2078 31 Ashadh 2077
Cash Dividend Declared 29,374,716.25 26,197,506.00
Bonus Shares 68,540,120.50 61,099,879.50
Total 97,914,836.75 87,297,385.50

5.19 Impact of Covid- 19 on the performance of the Bank throughout the FY 2020-21

The Covid- 19 pandemic has impacted most of the countries, including Nepal. This resulted in countries announcing
lockdown and quarantine measures that sharply stalled economic activities. The Government of Nepal enforced
nationwide lockdown along with prohibitory orders during different periods of the FY 2020-21. Several countries
took unprecedented fiscal and monetary actions to help alleviate the impact of the crisis. The Nepal Rastra Bank
(NRB) has announced several measures to ease the financial system stress, including enhancing system liquidity, asset
classification standstill benefit to overdue accounts where a moratorium has been granted and relaxation in liquidity
coverage requirement, among others. The Nepalese economy would be impacted by this pandemic with contraction
in industrial and services output across small and large businesses. The Bank’s business is expected to be impacted by
lower business opportunities and revenues in the short to medium term. The impact of the Covid- 19 pandemic on
bank’s results, including credit quality and provisions, remains uncertain and dependent on the spread of COVID- 19,
further steps taken by the Government and the Central bank to mitigate the economic impact, steps taken by the
Bank and the time it takes for economic activities to resume at normal levels. The Bank'’s capital and liquidity position
is strong and would continue to be the focus area for the Bank during this period.

The Bank has recovered the total interest amounting to NPR 2,806,302 till 15th Bhadra, 2078 as per the facility provided
by NRB out of the total receivable amounting to NPR 12,966,404 as on Ashadh end, 2078.
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5.20 Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5%
Details of shareholders holding more than 0.5% of total shares during the year is as follows:

SN Name of shareholder No of shares hold Percent Amount

Promoter Shareholders
Sashi Raj Pandey

1 892,748 10.03 89,274,800
) Dinesh Raj Joshi 794,116 8.92 79,411,600
3 Rabendra Raj Pandey 470,274 528 47,027,400
4 Chandra Lekha Pandey 422,472 4.75 42,247,200
5 Samson Jung Bahadur Rana 366,347 412 36,634,700
6 Saurav Pant 278,523 3.13 25,940,500
7 Nirmal Nath Pandey 150,974 1.70 15,097,400
8 Meeta Shah Rana 142,553 1.60 14,255,300
9 Govind Ballabh Bhatt 135,765 153 13,576,500
10 Rajesh Kumar Agrawal 107,755 1.21 10,775,500
11 Samaksha Nath Pant 105,341 1.18 10,534,100
12 Sujan Pant 101,989 1.15 10,198,900
13 Bimal Senchury 98,952 1.11 9,895,200
14 Dharma Raj Shrestha 90,089 1.01 9,008,900
Nawa Durga Trading Con-
15 cern 84,483 0.95 8,448,300
16 Ambika Shah 82,466 0.93 8,246,600
17 Jyoti Kumari Sarawagi 73,219 0.82 7,321,900

18 Rana Bahadur Shah 67,999 0.76 6,799,900

Bishnu Prasad Upadhaya

19 61,575 0.69 6,157,500
20 sanjay Man Baisyat 46,645 0.52 4,664,500
21 |AdarshaRajPandey 45,088 0.51 4,508,800

Public Shareholders

2 Cit- Citizen Unit Scheme 125,280 1.41 12,528,000

Trishakti Jung Bahadur Rana

23 101,294 114 10,129,400
24  |GauriShrestha 100,844 113 10,084,400
Prudential Capital Manage-
25 ment Co. Pvt. Ltd 81,365 0.91 8,136,500
26 Kamal Shrestha 65,000 0.73 6,500,000
27 Sabina Malla Shah 61,802 0.69 6,180,200
28 DixyantBaniya 54,579 061 5,457,900
29 Sumira Khadka 44,270 0.50 4,427,000
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5.21 Principal Indicators
FY FY FY FY FY
Ratio Indicators
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19 | 2019/20 | 2020/21

1. Net Profit/Gross Income Percent 39.36 18.08 19.50 15.30 17.15
2 52:2?32; er Share (as per NAS 33 - Eaming NPR 37.81 11.47 16.04 13.50 12.86
3. Market Value Per Share NPR 383.00 383 157.00 159.00 489.00
4. Price Earning Ratio Ratio 10.13 33.39 9.79 11.78 38.03
5. Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital Percent 26.57 10.00 13.00 3.16 7.70
6. Cash Dividend on Share Capital Percent - 8.77 10.65 737 3.30
7. Interest Income/Loans and Advances Percent 11.64 14.25 15.41 15.48 14.40
8. Staff Expenses/Total Operating Expenses Percent 55.35 51.10 60.20 62.59 62.72
9. iIrr:gt(:rest Expenses/Total Deposits and Borrow- Percent 597 8.60 8.80 8.97 719
10. Exchange Gain/Total Income Percent - - - - -
11. Staff Bonus/Total Staff Expenses Percent 54.57 37.26 33.17 24.39 23.46
12. Net Profit / Total Loan Percent 458 2.58 3.00 237 247
13. Net Profit / Total Assets Percent 3.14 1.85 2.17 1.72 1.45
14. Loans / Deposits Percent 85.48 95.77 93.31 89.77 73.91
15. Operating Expenses/ Total Assets Percent 1.49 1.53 1.72 1.76 1.57
16. Capital Adequacy (On Risk Weighted Assets) -

Core Capital Percent 17.97 21.62 20.76 18.69 23.62
Supplementary Capital Percent 0.90 0.89 0.89 0.77 1.23
Total Capital Fund Percent 18.79 22.51 21.66 19.46 24.85
17. Liquidity (CRR) Percent 0.36 0.34 0.29 0.28 0.44
18. Net Non-Performing Credit/Total Credit Ratio 0.25 0.17 0.14 0.67 0.89
19. Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread Percent 4.96 4.60 4.90 4.81 4.93
20. Book Net Worth . NPR 6,532.58| 9,704.92| 11,211.60 11,576 | 12,791.83

(in lakhs)

21. Book Net Worth per share NPR 127 120 138 139.64 143.71
22. Number of Shares No. 5,134,274.00| 8,100,000.00| 8,100,000.00| 8,290,350| 8,901,348
23. Number of Staff No. 66.00 68.00 82.00 83.00 80.00
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6 Comparison of Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements
NPR'000
As per unau- | As per Audit- Ve
Statement of Financial Position | dited Financial | ed Financial Reasons for Variance
Statement Statement | Inamount | In%
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent 483,876 494,288 10,412 2.15% Beclasmﬁcatlon from other
investment to bank balance
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 212,315 212,315 - 0.00%
Placement with Bank and Financial
Institutions ) ) )
Derivative financial instruments. - - -
Other trading assets - - -
Loan and advances to B/Fls 262,049 262,049 - 0.00%
Loans and advances to customers 4,289,497 4,287,464 (2033)|  -0.050|Adiustment of staff loan
Prepaid benefits
Fair value impact of reclassi-
Investment securities 2,400,028 2,441,865 41,837 1.74% |fied investments & interest
receivables on Govt Bond
Current tax assets 12,229 14,423 2,194 17.94%
Investment in subsidiaries - - -
Investment in associates - - -
Investment property - - -
Property and equipment 113,806 113,774 (32) -0.03%
Goodwill and Intangible assets 1,422 1,422 0
Deferred tax assets - - -
Reclassification of Interest
Other assets 106,383 74,212 (32,171)| -30.24% |receivables on Govt Bond to
Inv., Deferred emp exp
Total Assets 7,881,604 7,901,611 20,007
Liabilities
I?ue to Bank and Financial Institu- 658,619 658,619 ) 0.00%
tions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank - - -
Derivative financial instruments - - -
Deposits from customers 5,884,266 5,884,292 27 0.00%
Borrowing - - -
Current Tax Liabilities - - -
Provisions - - -
Deferred tax liabilities 17,352 22,724 5372 30.96%
Other liabilities 59,257 56,792 (2,465)| -4.16% |Reclassification adjustments
Debt securities issued - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - - -
Total Liabilities 6,619,494 6,622,428 2,934
Equity
Share capital 890,135 890,135 - 0.00%
Share premium - - -
Retained earnings 95,896 99,438 3542  3.69% EE;’;%Z}E;:?;:;M and
Reserves 276,078 289,610 13,532  4.90%| Change in net profit and
NFRS adjustments
Total equity attributable to equity 1,262,109 1,279,183 17,074 1.35%
holders
Total liabilities and equity 7,881,604 7,901,611 20,007

Y
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As per unau- | As per Audit- Variance
Statement of Profit or Loss dited Financial | ed Financial Reasons for Variance
In amount In %
Statement Statement
Interest income 664,898 667,513 2,614 0.39% | Reclassified from staff loan
Interest expense 451,124 451,131 7 0.00%
Net interest income 213,775 216,382 2,607 1.22%
Fee and commission income 26,355 26,370 16 0.06%
Fee and commission expense 580 685 105| 18.08% | Reclassification adjustments
Net fee and commission income 25,774 25,685 (89)| 100.00%
Other operating income 54,829 54,816 (13) -0.02%
Total operating income 294,378 296,883 2,505| 0.85%
Impairment charge/(reversal) for 6,462 7810 1348|  20.86%
loans and other losses
Net operating income 287,916 289,073 1,157| 0.40%
Personnel expenses 76,224 78,007 1783  2.34% /:ncs:fs”a'& Staff Loan adjust-
Depreciation 6,904 6,936 32 0.46%
Other operating expenses 37,368 39,427 2,059 5.51% | Reclassification adjustments
Operating profit 167,421 164,703 (678)| -0.41%
Non operating income/expense - - - 0.00%
Profit before tax 167,421 164,703 (678)| -0.41%
Income tax 53,376 50,247 (3.129)|  -5.869 |mPact of change in profit
before tax
Profit /(loss) for the period 114,044 114,457 413 0.36%

Ramesh Kathayat
Chief Financial Officer

Mahesh Pd. Adhikari
Director

Sashi Raj Pandey
Chairman

Date: November 30, 2021
Place: Kathmandu

Lilamani Neupane
Chief Executive Officer

Umesh Bhagat Pradhananga

Director

Mamata Adhikari

Director

Samson JB Rana

Director

Ram Krishna Sharma Wagle
Director

Dinesh Raj Joshi
Director

As per our report of even date
Pratik Khanal
Auditor
Pratik Khanal& Associates

Chartered Accountants
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